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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a
higher investment risk may be attached than other
companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing
in such companies and should make the decision to invest

only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities
traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be
a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any

part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the ‘Directors”] of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”] collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.

FEEMAXAMBR AT ([BE3ZH )
GEMZ &

GEMWEM NAFNEATFRFE-—FELTH
TE WELARMELEREMEBRXAETHAA
THREREAR -BRRENALETHRERE
RZELATANETAR YERSBEEAFNE
BEGELHRERE -

HARGEM LT AR EEBA+F/NE QT EGEM
BEENRSTREBRBXMIREEZRS
AREBANTERDER BRELIREHE
GEMEENRSZEASRBENTS -

BEERGREEFBERAFI R ITH AR E
ZABHTRE HREHESE LT TER
E] 88 R T T AR B E 2 a0
a7 AR TEL ZAKBEZEZARTMSIEHZ
(EAJ B X AL A E

A H & 5 38 FR B 3 AT GEM B 25 L 11 #2 Bl ([GEM
LETERA))ZRERK BRI B EBEERER
RA[ARA)ZEH - ARAIEEFE([E
F)RERESNE AR BEAEZHEE - BEER
1B — )& B HETER - LIS HTRA L S -
ARG FEENEEBEXNT HGREELTE
H IR GF S T A48 & A B (1]
Bty FI7 - B BT (] B B 3 K48 &5 TR

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

i



CONTENTS
H £%

Page B #&

3 Corporate Information
AEER

6 Directors’ Business Review
E=XBOE

13 Directors and Senior Management
EENEREEE

16 Corporate Governance Report
PEERBWE

35 Directors’ Report
BEEgWmE

50 Independent Auditor’'s Report
B AZ B
Audited Consolidated Financial Statements:
RERGEVBHREK:

56 Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
maBnk

57 Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
e EmrmkaEE

58 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BRI ®E

60 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BOREEBE

61 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FelemnEx

64 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fra MR MR

180 Five-Year Financial Summary
HFHBRHE

ﬁ ANNUAL REPORT £
2020/21



CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EFET
Executive Directors HITES
CHIAU Sing Chi BE5

CHOW Man Ki Kelly Ehe:

LAU Man Kit 2

CHOW Nga Chee Alice B B

LIN Jason LIN Jason

YIP Yiu Bong ERH
Non-Executive Director FHITESE
CHIN CHOW Chung Hang Roberta PR &8 E H7
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYFHITES
CHOI Mei Ping HBEF

ONG King Keung oy

TSUI Wing Tak KT
COMPANY SECRETARY DEIRE
CHAN Ka Yin BRRE
COMPLIANCE OFFICER ERIEfE
CHOW Man Ki Kelly JE X A
AUDIT COMMITTEE FEEAE
ONG King Keung (Chairman) Fior (F/E)
CHOI Mei Ping HBEF

TSUI Wing Tak %X
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FEEE®
CHOI Mei Ping (Chairman) BET(FE)
CHOW Man Ki Kelly Ehe:

ONG King Keung ey

TSUI Wing Tak KT

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED “
EEEEERERAR



CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

CHOW Man Ki Kelly (Chairman)
CHOI Mei Ping

ONG King Keung

TSUI Wing Tak

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
CHAN Ka Yin

AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Fubon Bank Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACGE OF BUSINESS
Unit 202, 2/F, Chinaweal Centre

414-424 Jaffe Road
Hong Kong

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2020/21

REEAE

AR (£/E)
T
RoxiZ

BEAER

JE
REE

53

WY EHAEHHERAT
HEBIHET
ERERBIT

B HIRITHERAA]
FE LBELRITERAT
RETRITER QA

EEMMEE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P0O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands

HNEEREEERME

B
WEEA14-4245%
hEREEFRL2E202%F



CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFIEH

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICES
Principal Registrar

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

Branch Registrar
Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
8220

WEBSITE

www.bingogroup.com.hk

B inBFERE
ROBFEEAE

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive

PO. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

BROBEETDE
SEZEFEBBERAR
BB
2EARER1835%
&AM 541

B% {7 £X 3%

8220

muk

www. bingogroup.com.hk

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

|



5

DIRECTORS’ BUSINESS REVIEW
ESXRBOR

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present
the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”) to our
shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group continues to focus on movie
production, licensing and derivatives, crossover marketing and
provision of interactive contents (“Filmed Entertainment, New
Media Exploitations and Licensing Businesses”) and cinema
investment and management (“Cinema Business”).

In view of the on-going development of the Cinema Business,
this segment has become the prime revenue generator of the
Group in the Year. Approximately revenue of HK$6.9 million and
gross profit of HK$3.9 million were generated during the Year.
The revenue and gross profit for the Year declined, as
compared to revenue of HK$22.9 million and gross profit of
HK$13.5 million generated in last year. Due to outbreak of
COVID-19 in the very beginning of Year 2020, all cinemas in
Hangzhou and Shanghai could not open since late January
2020. In July 2020, cinemas in certain low-risk areas of the
People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC") were allowed to re-
commence their businesses. The Group’s cinemas in Shanghai
and Hangzhou have re-opened in August this year, and minimal
amount of turnover was generated during the Year. It is,
however, a good start to normalize the Group’s cinema
operation. With respect to our cinema in Linan, we could not
reach a conclusion of the business plan with the owner of the
shopping mall where that cinema was located, and that cinema
was closed in September 2020.

In February 2018, Bingo Movie Development Limited (“Bingo
Movie”),
Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”), an independent

a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and

third party, entered into an agreement (the “JV Agreement”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“JV
Company”). The issued share capital of the JV Company will be
owned as to 49% by Bingo Movie and as to 51% by Lechuang.
The JV Company will be principally engaged in investment and
development of VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality)
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projects. Pursuant to the JV Agreement, Bingo Movie will enter
into of a loan agreement with the JV Company, pursuant to
which Bingo Movie will advance the loan of not less than HK$25
million and not more than HK$35 million to the JV Company for
investment and development of relevant VR and MR projects. In
September 2018, the loan agreement has been signed and
RMB239 million (equivalent to approximately HK$34.3 million as
at 31 March 2021) was lent to the JV Company. Another loan
of RMB16 million (equivalent to approximately HK$18.9 million
as at 31 March 2021) with a term of three years was granted
to the JV Company on 30 September 2019. The difference
between the new loan and old loan of RMB13 million with the
accrued interest has been repaid to the Bingo Movie during the
last year. No appropriate VR or MR projects were located as of
the date of this report. For further details, please refer to the
Company’'s announcement dated 30 September 2019 and 7
November 2018.

In respect of the development of other businesses, the Group
has established a subsidiary which is named as #;T Lt & 5 @ k&
E 1 H R A A (Zhejiang Bingo Family Brand Management
Company Limited, “Bingo Family”) in Zhejiang in late November
2020. The Group holds 51% equity stake of Bingo Family. The
principal businesses of Bingo Family are brand and intellectual
property (“IP") management, key opinion leader (“KOL")
incubation and KOL live shows and e-commerce. Since its
incorporation to 31 March 2021, Bingo Family was still running
in a trial period and has only incurred loss before tax of
approximately HK$2.5 million to the Group. The Group
considers the growth of Bingo Family is not such satisfactorily.

During the third quarter of fiscal year 2019/20, the Company
has noted that Mr. YIN Gang (“Mr. Yin"), a then director of
certain non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group, would have
misappropriated funds of approximately RMB13 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$14.5 million as at 31 March
2020) from two non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC for his personal uses. The Company has
taken appropriate legal actions in the PRC against Mr. Yin.
Please refer to the Company’'s announcement dated 5 February
2020 for further details.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Year, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately HK$6.9 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 69.9% as compared with HK$22.9 million for
last year. The HK$B.9 million turnover for the Year (2020:
HK$22.9 million) mainly consisted of the gross revenue of the
Cinema Business of HK$6.9 million (2020: HK$22.9 million).

Owing to the closure of cinemas in the PRC in early this fiscal
year and our cinema in Linan was closed in September 2020,
the turnover decreased significantly from approximately
HK$22.9 million in the last year to approximately HK$6.9
million in the current year, which principally led to the decrease
of gross profit by approximately HK$9.6 million from
approximately HK$13.5 million in the last year to approximately
HK$3.9 million in the current year.

In view of severe business environment, the Group has
tightened its cost control measures significantly, which resulted
in the decrease of selling and marketing expenses from
HK$4.4 million in the last year to approximately HK$0.2 million
in current year, and the decrease of administrative expenses
from approximately HK$34.1 million in the last year to
approximately HK$22.2 million in the current year. In addition,
the Group made impairments on fixed assets of approximately
HK$2.8 million, right-of-use assets of approximately HK$2.8
million and goodwill of approximately HK$1.0 million, totaling
HK$6.8 million in current year. This gross impairment amount
is, however, much less than the impairment amounts of
approximately HK$11.6 million.

In the last year, the loss resulted from misappropriation of
funds by Mr. Yin of approximately RMB13 million, equivalent to
approximately HK$14.5 million as at 31 March 2020, was
recorded. This is an incidental event and no misappropriation of
the Group’s funds happened in current year.
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As there were reduction of selling and marketing expenses and
administrative expenses, and impairment losses, in current
year as compared to those amounts in the last year, and there
was one-off loss from Mr. Yin's misappropriation of funds
recorded in last year, the net loss of the Group decreased
significantly from approximately HK$54.9 million in the last year
to approximately HK$24.9 million, even the revenue decreased
significantly as mentioned above.

LIQUIDITY, DEBT RATIO, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$43.9 million (2020: HK$82.3 million),
including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$15.3
million (2020: HK$38.1 million). There was no pledged bank
deposit as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). As at 31 March
2021, the debt ratio (defined as total liabilities/total assets)
was approximately 0.80 (2020: 0.62).

Although the Group’s total assets decreased significantly over
the Year, its total liabilities decreased too. The Group held cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$15.3 million which
was adequate to cover the full amount of its current liabilities of
HK$15.1 million as at 31 March 2021. Accordingly, the Board
believes that the Group has sufficient resources to satisfy its
working capital requirements. During the Year, the Group
financed its operations principally with its own working capital.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any bank
overdraft (2020: Nil).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 25 February 2020, the Group entered into an acquisition
agreement with CineChina to acquire the remaining 30% of the
equity interests of Bingo Cinema Investment Company Limited
and Bingo Cinema Management Company Limited, companies
that are incorporated in Hong Kong at a cash consideration of
HK$721,000. The transaction was completed on 29 April
2020. Details of the acquisition are stated in the Company’s
announcements dated 25 February 2020 and 27 April 2020,
and its circular dated 29 April 2020.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the
year ended 31 March 2021.
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EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 65 (2020: 78] staff in
the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs including directors’
remuneration were approximately HK$10.7 million during the
Year (2020: HK$14.9 million).

Remuneration is determined with reference to market terms
and the performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee. Year-end bonus based on individual performance will
be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contributions. Other benefits include contributions to statutory
mandatory provident fund scheme to its employees. During the
Year, the Company has not granted any awarded shares or
share options to the Group’s directors or employees.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s exposures to foreign currencies mainly arises from
receivables from PRC customers and its investment in foreign
subsidiaries which are financed internally in RMB, and payables
to PRC suppliers. In order to mitigate the potential impact of
currency fluctuations, the Group closely monitors its foreign
currency exposures and will use suitable hedging instruments
against significant foreign currency exposures, where
necessary. No foreign currency hedge contract was entered
into by the Group during the Year. As at 31 March 2021, the
Group had no outstanding foreign currency hedge contracts
(2020: Nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had no material capital commitments as
at 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).
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OUTLOOK

As of the date of this report, the coronavirus outbreak has
killed nearly 4 million people and infected more than 180 million
people globally. Although the situation in China is better than
many countries in the West, the economy in China is still
shocked to a certain extent. The cinemas have been ordered to
be closed since early Year 2020 and certain cinemas in the
PRC are just allowed to be re-opened in late July 2020.

In spite of the wide-spreading of coronavirus mentioned above,
the Group may continue to grasp other business opportunities
in investments in cinemas in the PRC and attractive movies,
when appropriate. While the Group continued its existing
businesses, the Group will put more focus onto locating other
business opportunities with enormous potentials, including
provision of consultancy services, online games developing and
operating businesses, and investments in China cultural

industry.

In November 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an agreement to establish a subsidiary with 51%
equity interest — Bingo Family, in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC. Bingo Family is engaged principally in brand
and IP management, KOL incubation and KOL live shows and
e-commerce. Bingo Family has been running business in trial
period since December 2020. The Group, however, considers
that the growth of Bingo Family is not as fast as what it was
expected when established. We will closely monitor the
development of Bingo Family's business.

The VR (Virtual Reality) and MR (Mixed Reality) industry is
undergoing rapid development and the Company considers that
there will be growth potential in investment of VR and MR
projects. In February 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with Lechuang Holdings (HK) Limited (“Lechuang”) in
relation to the formation of the joint venture company (“‘JV
Company”). The formation of the JV Company will allow the
Group to utilise its experience in provision of interactive
contents with the expertise of Lechuang in developing VR and
MR projects. The Company is optimistic as to the prospect of
the JV Company, and has granted a loan to the JV Company of
RMB16.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$18.9 million
as at 31 March 2021) in September 20189.
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The Board believes that the Group’s existing businesses can
create a synergistic effect with the above-mentioned new
businesses and will benefit the Group in the future.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
extend my sincere gratitude to all our shareholders, investors
and business partners for their continued support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to thank my fellow
Directors and senior management team who have offered
invaluable advice and leadership during such a challenging year
and the management team and all staff for their dedication,
loyalty and valued services.

For and on behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”) — Mr. Chiau has over 30
years of performance and management experience in the movie
industry. Mr. Chiau has been a leading icon of the movie and
entertainment industry in the Greater China Region for over 30
years, and had received numerous awards in the industry,
including best supporting actor, best actor and best director
awards presented by leading film academies. Mr. Chiau joined
the Group in June 2010. He is currently a director of a
subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Chiau is a brother of Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly (“Ms. Kelly Chow”) — Ms. Kelly
Chow was appointed as an executive Director in January 2014.
Ms. Kelly Chow has over 20 years’ ample experience in movie
production and distribution as well as licensing businesses. She
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Chow is a sister of Mr. Chiau, an executive Director and a
substantial shareholder of the Company. In addition to the
Company, Ms. Kelly Chow is working with Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ("Mr.
Yip"), an executive Director, in The Star Overseas Limited
(“TSOL™. Mr. Yip is currently the Head of Legal and Compliance
of The Star Overseas Limited, the controlling shareholder of
which is Ms. Kelly Chow.

Mr. LAU Man Kit (“Mr. Lau”) — Mr. Lau joined the Group in
January 2014. Mr. Lau has over 40 years of extensive sales
and marketing experience in various industries, including
property management, computer technology systems and
automobiles, and has a wide business network in China. Mr. Lau
is currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice (“Ms. Alice Chow”) — Ms. Alice
Chow is currently the Manager — Marketing, Public Relations &
Content Management of the Group, directors of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and a producer of TSOL. She holds
the degrees of Master of Arts in Communication of Hong Kong
Baptist University, Master of Corporate Governance of The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University and Master of Visual Arts of Hong
Kong Baptist University. Ms. Alice Chow has approximately 20
years of experience in the industry of movie production.
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Mr. LIN Jason (“Mr. Lin”) — He has over 20 years’ experience
in financial strategic planning in various industries. Mr. Lin has
ceased to be the Chief Business Strategist of the Group on 7
May 2021, and his duties and powers as an executive Director
has been suspended by the Board on 7 May 2021.

Mr. YIP Yiu Bong — Mr. Yip, holds Master's degree of Laws in
Chinese and Comparative Laws, City University of Hong Kong,
Master's degree in Professional Accounting, Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and Bachelor's degree of Business
Administration (Hons) and Master's degree of Science in
Corporate Governance and Compliance, Hong Kong Baptist
University. Mr. Yip is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and a Certified
Practicing Accountant of CPA Australia. He is currently the
Head of Legal and Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited,
the controlling shareholder of which is Ms. Kelly Chow and she
is an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yip has over 14 years of experience in legal and
compliance departments of various companies and legal firms.
He joined the Group as a non-executive Director in June 2020
and re-designated as an executive Director in March 2021.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang, Roberta (“Mrs. Chin”) —
Mrs. Chin has co-produced various films with the Golden
Harvest Group in the past. Mrs. Chin holds a Bachelor of Arts
Degree in English Literature from Dominican University of
California, USA and a Master’'s Degree in Communication —
Documentary film from Stanford University, USA. Mrs. Chin has
more than 30 years’ experience in the film production and
distribution industry, including as an interim CEO in the JC
Group. Mrs. Chin joined the Group in May 2010. Mrs. Chin is
currently directors of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHOI Mei Ping (“Ms. Choi”) — Ms. Choi has
approximately 20 years’ ample marketing experience in the
airline industry. She is currently working in an international
airline company. She has joined the Group in November 2014.
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Mr. ONG King Keung (“Mr. Ong”) — Mr. Ong holds a bachelor
degree in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and a master degree in corporate finance from the
City University of Hong Kong. He is a member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is currently
a director of a professional audit firm in Hong Kong, and has
over 20 years of experience in auditing and accounting industry.
He has joined the Group in December 2016.

Mr. Ong is currently an independent non-executive director of
each of K Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8475) and
Risecomm Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1673). Mr. Ong
has resigned as independent non-executive director of each of
Tech Pro Technology Development Limited (“Tech Pro”, stock
code: 3823) with effect from 18 February 2019, China Water
Affairs Group Limited (stock code: 855) with effect from 22
November 2019, and My Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock
code: 8297) with effect from 11 May 2021, and a non-
executive director of Deson Construction International Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8268) with effect from 29 July 2018.
Except for Tech Pro which was delisted on 2 March 2020, the
shares of all remaining three companies are either listed on the
main board or GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (“Mr. Tsui”) — Mr. Tsui is currently an
executive director of CBK Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428)
and was an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China) Group
Limited (stock code: 8148) from April 2020 to December
2020. The issued shares of all two companies are listed on
GEM the Stock Exchange. He is also a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia. Mr. Tsui holds
a bachelor’'s degree in Economics from Macquarie University in
Australia. He has over 25 years of extensive experience in
corporate finance and accounting.
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OVERVIEW

The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
this Corporate Governance Report in this annual report for the
year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Year”). The Company is
concerned to have high standards of corporate governance. It
is important because the Board believes that good quality
corporate governance would assist the management to monitor
the Company’s business activities effectively and thus interests
of the shareholders of the Company will be well protected.

The Company has applied the principles in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company is in compliance with the mandatory Code provisions,
save for the deviations discussed in the sections of “CHAIRMAN
AND CHIEF OFFICER” and “APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION
OF THE DIRECTORS” below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout the Year. The
Company has also made specific enquiry to all Directors and,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the
required standard of dealing and its code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD
Board of Directors

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company’'s business and affairs. The ultimate
responsibility for the day to day management, administration
and operation of the Company is delegated to the executive
Directors and the senior management of the Company. In
practice, the Board takes responsibilities for decision making in
all major matters of the Company. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the Group and the Board has the full support of them to
discharge its responsibilities.
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Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this report
are set out on pages 13 to 15 of this annual report. Given the
composition of the Board and the skills, knowledge and expertise
of the Directors, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to protect
the interests of the Group and the shareholders. The Board will
review its composition regularly to ensure that it has the
appropriate balance of expertise, skills and experience to
continue to effectively oversee the business of the Company.

The emoluments of the Directors are determined by the Board
of Directors on recommendation of the Remuneration
Committee with the reference to their respective duties and
responsibility with the Company, the Company’'s performance
and current market situation. Details of emoluments of the
Directors for the Year are disclosed in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises ten
Directors, including six executive Directors, namely Mr. CHIAU
Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, Mr. LAU Man Kit, Ms.
CHOW Nga Chee Alice, Mr. LIN Jason and Mr. YIP Yiu Bong;
one non-executive Director, namely Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung
Hang Roberta; and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. CHOI Mei Ping, Mr. ONG King Keung and Mr. TSUI
Wing Tak. Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi and Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly are
siblings. Mr. YIP Yiu Bong is currently the Head of Legal and
Compliance of The Star Overseas Limited, the controlling
shareholder of which is Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and she is an
executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed, the Board members have no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) with each other.

Independent non-executive Directors have confirmed in writing
their independence from the Company in accordance with the
guidelines on director independence of the GEM Listing Rules.
On this basis, the Company considers all such Directors to be
independent.

As part of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the
Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the
same by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend
external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards Continuous Professional Development training.
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Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5, Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
During the Year, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities either by
attending training courses or by reading materials relevant to
the Company’s business or to the Directors’ duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an
annual basis.

The number of Board Meetings, Committee Meetings and
General Meetings attended by each Director during the Year
under review is set out in the following table. Figure in brackets
indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a Board Member or Committee Member (as
the case may be).

BIETRMGNEABSK EREDEISERE
BROEEVERENBMLEE AERAHE
ERFLANBEREMBENER - RAFE 2
REZOFBHERIREAMERARAEK
HEERELBRERBEEN ZTA2BAE L
FEEXBERIBIED-

ARBERFEECEZTRSABBEEERR
BMEEENEFREEENCE AP MELSHY
EENRABB ARFRET RREEKS
FERE -

RADBEFEERN SEFHFEEEEH %8
EEAENMBRREZRBER TR -ERAZH
FHEEBATIRESEXEAZEENE (VT
BRAME) BEAMBITZREZEHERHK -

Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Directors Notes Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
Espg fist ES88E BRZEEEE FHMZESSE REZEEE; BRRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi BERTE 2/(12) N/A NER N/A 7 N/A 7iEA /(1
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly BXELZ+ 12/(12) N/A TE A 5/(5) 4/(4) 0/(1)
Mr. LAU Man Kit AEEE 12/(12) N/A TEfA N/A FiE M N/A TEA 0/(1)
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice RSt 1 N/A T8 N/A TiE A N/A T8 f N/A @A N/A i A
Mr. LIN Jason LIN Jason % & 1 N/A T N/A T F N/A T f N/A T N/A T F
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong ERnrs 2 10/(10) N/A TE N/A i/ N/A TEA 1/(1)
Non-executive Director FHTES
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang Roberta ~ B#f&¥i%+ 12/012) N/A TiEA N/A T8 f N/A i@ 1/01)
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BXTa+ 11/012) 5/(5) 4/(9) 3/(4) 0/(1
Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk EEHBEE 3 N/A 1A 1/(1) N/A i/ N/A TEA 0/(1)
Mr. ONG King Keung FHRETE 12/(12) 5/(8) 5/(9) 4/4) 0/01)
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak BXBEE 4 7/(7) 3/(3) 2/(2) 1/(1) 0/
Note 1: appointed on 31 March 2021 M1 R —F=A=1+—HEZE
Note 2: appointed on 1 June 2020 as a non-executive Director and re-  [ifi2: R_Z_ZF A —HEZTAIIFNTES

designated as an executive Director on 31 March 20211 MR ZZEZ—F=ZA=+—AEATAHIT

HE

Note 3: resigned on 6 May 2020 M3 : RZZE_ZEFHANBEIE
Note 4: appointed on 5 August 2020 Mizd: RZTZ-_TFN\ARABEGE
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Company does not have the Chairman of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer during the year ended 31 March 2021.
The Board is in the process of locating appropriate persons to
fill the vacancies of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.
Even so, the Board considers that the existing Board members
are able to share the power and responsibilities of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer among themselves, as detailed
below.

Based on Code A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. The Board’s current significant decisions are made in
Board meetings. Every Board member has the rights and
responsibility to propose Board meetings to discuss significant
issues he/she concerns, and has the power to make the
decisions among other Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.2, in each Board meeting, the
director who proposes that meeting (the “Convenor”) would
generally be appointed as the chairman of the meeting in
accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
and he/she has to ensure all directors briefed on issues arising
at board meeting.

With reference to Code A.2.3, the Convenor has to provide the
meeting agenda and materials (the “Board Papers”) to the
company secretary, and the company secretary will then pass
the Board Papers to other Board members for their review.
Unless urgent matters to be discussed, it is the Board’s
practice that the Board Papers have to be given to the Board
at least 3 days in advance of the Board meetings. Other Board
members should have enough time to read the Board Papers
and raise questions and/or request more information before
holding the Board meetings. For the urgent Board meetings,
the Convenor and/or company secretary have to contact
individual Director about the details of the agenda meeting and
the reasons of urgency. Every Board member has the right to
request additional time to understand the agenda details and
delay the Board meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.4, the executive Directors jointly
provide leadership of the Board, and ensure the Board works
effectively and perform its responsibilities, and that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner. As
mentioned above, all Directors have the rights to propose
Board meetings. The company secretary has to summarise all
agenda items and circulate the agenda to all Board members.

With reference to Code A.2.5, the Board members share the
responsibility to ensure good corporate governance practices
and procedures are established. It is the practice of the Board
to discuss corporate governance issues in the meetings to
approve the interim and annual results.

With reference to Code A.2.6, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of encouraging all directors to make a full and
active contribution to the Board's affairs and take the lead to
ensure that it acts in the best interest of the Company. The
Convenor has the responsibility to encourage other Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time
for discussion of issues and ensure the Board decisions fairly
reflected Board consensus.

With reference to Code A.2.7, the independent non-executive
Directors hold at least a meeting among themselves annually,
to consider and discuss any significant issues of the Company
and the Board, without influence from the executive Directors.

With reference to Code A.2.8, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of ensuring that appropriate steps are taken
to provide effective communication with shareholders and that
their views are communicated to the Board as a whole. It is a
general practice that the executive Directors will discuss the
shareholder’s viewpoints with non-executive Directors in the
Board meeting following a shareholders’ meeting.
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With reference to Code A.2.9, the executive Directors share
the responsibility of promoting a culture of openness and
debate by facilitating the effective contribution of non-executive
Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations
between executive and non-executive Directors. As mentioned
above, all directors, including non-executive Directors, have the
right to propose a board meeting to discuss the issues they
consider important, and enough time is reserved for all
Directors to read the Board Papers and raise questions. It is
the Board's practice to encourage the non-executive Directors
to raise their viewpoints in Board meetings.

Code A.5.1 states that an issuer should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the chairman of the board or an
independent non-executive director and comprises a majority of
independent non-executive directors. It is the Board's practice
to appoint an executive Director as the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board, as the Board considers
that executive Directors have to lead the business development
of the Company and need to have appropriate Board members
In addition, the
nomination committee of the Board consists of majority of

and senior management to assist them.

independent non- executive Directors, who have the veto power
jointly if they consider the nomination is inappropriate.

With reference to Code B.1.1, the remuneration committee of
the Board would consult Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly, an executive
Director and the major shareholder of the Company about their
remuneration proposals for other executive Directors.

With reference to Code E.1.2, the Board appoints as least one
executive Director to attend the annual general meeting, due to
the chairmanship vacancy. The executive Directors have to
invite the chairman of the audit, remuneration and nomination
committees of the Board to attend the annual general meeting.

With reference to Code F.1.3, it is the Company’s practice that
the company secretary report to the executive Directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF THE DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Provision A.4.1 of the Code, the non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive
Directors are not appointed for a specific term, but they are
subject to re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the Articles.

In accordance with the Articles of the Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at
least once every three years.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULE 5.05A OF GEM LISTING
RULES

Following the appointment of Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice and
Mr. LIN Jason as executive Directors on 31 March 2021, the
number of Board members increased to ten members but
Company has only three independent non-executive Directors.
As such, the number of independent non-executive Directors
falls below the minimum number as required under Rule 5.05A
of GEM Listing Rules. Following the resignation of Mrs. CHIN
CHOW Chung Hang Roberta on 30 June 2021, the number of
independent non-executive Directors will become one-third of
the total number of Board members and Rule 5.05A of GEM
Listing Rules will be complied with accordingly.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by
the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board, which include (a) to develop and review
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations; (b) to review and monitor the
training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c] to review
and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to
develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Group
and the Directors; and (e) to review the Company’'s compliance
with the Code and disclosure in the corporate governance
report.

The Board had reviewed and discussed the corporate
governance policy of the Group and was satisfied with the
effectiveness of its corporate governance paolicy.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give
a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of the external auditors about their financial
reporting are set out in the independent auditor’'s report
attached to the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2021 set out in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHAN Ka Yin ("“Mr. Chan”), who is a director of an external
service provider, was appointed as the company secretary in
November 2013. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He reports to the executive
Directors of the Company and assists the Board in functioning
effectively and efficiently. During the Year, Mr. Chan undertook
over 15 hours of professional training to update his skill and
knowledge.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference. During the Year, the Remuneration Committee
comprises all independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms.
CHOI Mei Ping (Chairman), Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (resigned on 6
May 2020), Mr. ONG King Keung, Mr. TSUI Wing Tak
(appointed on 5 August 2020) and one executive Director, Ms.
CHOW Man Ki Kelly.

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include (a)
to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; (b)
to review and approve the management’'s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals and
objectives; and (c) to make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration of executive Directors, non-executive
Directors, and senior management, and to review and approve
compensation arrangements relating to dismissal or removal of
Directors for misconduct to ensure that they are consistent
with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate.

The primary goal of the remuneration on executive
remuneration packages is to enable the Group to motivate
executive Directors and senior management by linking their
remuneration with reference to the Group’s operation results,
which reference to individual performances and comparable
market statistics.

The principal elements of the Group’s executive remuneration
package include basic salary, discretionary bonus, and share
options.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee comprises Ms.
CHOW Man Ki Kelly (Chairman) an executive Director, and all
independent non-executive Directors, namely Ms. CHOI Mei
Ping, Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (resigned on 6 May 2020), and Mr.
ONG King Keung and Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (appointed on 5
August 2020).

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individual nominated for directorships;
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for
directors; and determining the policy for nomination of
Directors. The Nomination Committee has specific written
terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those stipulated in Code provisions.

Procedure and Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for
the appointment of Director(s) including independent non-
executive Director(s) in accordance with the following
procedures and process:

i. The Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration
to the current composition and size of the Board, develop
a list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at
the outset to focus the search effort;
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The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
considers appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party agency
firm and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include but are
not limited to:

(a) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others, of gender,
age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length

of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the Board in
respect of available time and relevant interest;

(c) Qualifications,
experience in the relevant industries in which the

including accomplishment and
Group’s business is involved;

(d) Independence;

(e) Reputation for integrity;

(f)  Potential contributions that the individual can bring to
the Board; and

(g) Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any process it
considers appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the
candidates, such as interviews, background checks,
presentations and third party reference checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad range of
candidates who are in and outside of the Board's circle of
contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship,
the Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/or by
way of written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the
recommendation to the Board for appointment;
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The Nomination Committee will provide the relevant
information of the selected candidate to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration of the remuneration package
of such selected candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and the Remuneration Committee will make
the recommendation to the Board on the policy and
structure for the remuneration;

The Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not
members of the Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment as the
case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed by the filing
of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director
to acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as
the case may be) to be filed with the relevant regulatory
authorities, if required.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity palicy to achieve board

diversity through the consideration of a number of factors and

measureable objectives, including but not limited to gender,

age, cultural background, educational background, skills,

knowledge and professional experience. All Board appointments

will be based on merit, and candidates will be measured against

objective criteria, with due regard for the benefits of diversity

on the Board. The Nomination Committee has the delegated

responsibilities to monitor the implementation and review the

board diversity policy and report to the Board.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company's
annual report and accounts, interim report and quarterly
reports and to provide advices and comments thereon to the
Board. The Audit Committee will also be responsible for
reviewing and supervising the Company’s financial reporting,
risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Audit Committee comprises all independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. ONG King Keung
(Chairman), Ms. CHOI Mei Ping, Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (resigned on
6 May 2020) and Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (appointed on 5 August
2020). In the meetings held during the Year, the Audit
Committee reviewed the annual, interim and quarterly results
of the Company and made recommendations to the Board and
the management in respect of the Company’'s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control system.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
accounts of the Company. As at 31 March 2021, the Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly,
the Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor on financial reporting
are set out in the Independent Auditor's Report attached to the
Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2021.

The Board has regularly reviewed the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal control systems with
an aim to safeguard the shareholders’ interests and the
Company's assets. The purpose is to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatements,
errors, losses or fraud, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in achieving the Company’'s business objectives.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2021, fees for the Company’s
external auditor for audit services and non-audit services were
HK$850,000 and HK$500,000 respectively.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 50 to 55.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
Responsibility

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective risk management functions are maintained, while
management is required to provide responsive actions to
manage risk. A sound and effective risk management is
designed to identify and manage the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives.

Risk Management Framework

We adopt an integrated bottom-up and top-down risk review
process to enable comprehensive identification and prioritization
of all material risks throughout the Group, escalation of material
risks at the right managerial level, effective risk dialogue among
the management, and proper oversight of risk mitigation
efforts.
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Internal Controls Model and Continuous Improvement

Our internal controls model is based on that set down by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the U.S. Treadway
Commission (“COS0”) for internal controls and has five
components, namely Control Environment; Risk Assessment;
Control Activities; Information and Communication; and
Monitoring. In developing our internal controls model based on
the COSO principles, we have taken into consideration our
organizational structure and the nature of our business
activities.

We have put in place a phased improvement plan and
progressed to future enhance our internal controls and risk
management system. The initial phase of the plan focused on
adopting a more risk-based (instead of process-based) approach
to risk identification and assessment. This approach enriches
our ability to analyze risks and respond to opportunities as we
pursue our strategic objectives. Management reporting to the
Audit Committee has also been enhanced, including the
presentation of special reports on selected risk topics.

In the current place, we aim to further integrate internal
controls and risk management into our business processes,
including in annual budgeting and planning. Instead of treating
the COSO framework as a framework-update exercise, a holistic
approach has been adopted by us, taking into consideration the
Company’'s circumstances, including its ongoing internal
controls and risk management improvement plan as well as
other strategic initiatives (e.g. corporate social responsibility
strategy and reporting). All of these enhance our ultimate
objective to make our risk management system a “live” one that
is practiced on a day-to-day basis by operating units.
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The Board &
Has overall respansibility for the Group’s risk management system and internal controls systems;
BRGAAKEZARERHERNEERESE
Sets strategic objectives;
HIE R E
Review the effectiveness of our risk management systems and internal control systems;
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Monitors the nature and extent of risk exposure for our major risks; and
ERIZRRIMERMARERIEE: &
Provides direction on the importance of risk management culture.
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Review of Risk Management & Internal Controls
Effectiveness

In respect of the Year, the Company has engaged independent
professional advisors (the “Advisors”) to carry out the internal
audit functions by performing independent appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’'s risk management
and internal control systems. The Advisors have conducted an
annual review (the “Annual Review”) of and made
recommendations to improve the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. Based on the
Annual Review the Board considered the risk management and
internal controls system effective and adequate. No significant
areas of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance controls, and risk management functions of the
Group has been identified. During the review, the Board also
considered the resources, qualification and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions, and
their training and budget were adequate.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has put in place a policy on handling and
dissemination of inside information which sets out the
procedures and internal controls for handling and dissemination
of inside information in a timely manner in such a way to avoid
placing any person in a privileged dealing position. The inside
information policy also provides guidelines to employees of the
Group to ensure proper safeguards exists to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory and listing rule
disclosure requirements. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential
inside information. Dissemination of inside information of the
Company shall be conducted by publishing the relevant
information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the Year.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposal at general
meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the
Company, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more shareholders
of the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the
Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the articles of association of the
Company, no person other than a Director retiring at the
meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a written notice (unless otherwise specifically
stated and as further defined in the articles of association of
the Company)  (the “Notice”) signed by a shareholder of the
Company (other than the person to be proposed) duly qualified
to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election and also a
Notice signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected shall have been lodged at the head office of the
Company or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar of the
Company provided that the minimum length of the period,
during which such Naotice(s) are given, shall be at least seven
(7) days and that (if the Notices are submitted after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later
than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries to the
Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquires and concerns
to the Company, for the attention of the Board of Directors, by
email: info@bingogroup.com.hk, or mail to Unit 202, 2/F,
Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong Kong.

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Investor Relations and Communication

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications
with all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a
high level of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations.
The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of corporate information to its shareholders and
investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its corporate
publications including quarterly, interim and annual reports and
public announcements. While the annual general meeting
provides a valuable forum for direct communication between
the Board and its shareholders, the Company also maintains its
website to provide an alternative communication channel for
the public and its shareholders. All corporate communication
and Company's latest updates are available on the Company’s
website for public’s information.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of Bingo
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is pleased to present
the Directors’ Report in this annual report for the year ended
31 March 2021 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
March 2021 by operating segment is set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 59. The
Directors of the Company do not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 180. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the Year are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Fair review of the Company’s business and likely future
development

Please refer to “Directors’ Business Review” on pages 6 to 12.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
Please refer to note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
Environmental protection

The Group has taken an initiative to promote employees’
awareness of environmental protection and the need to achieve
efficient utilisation of resources through launching paper
recycling in offices.

Compliance with laws and regulations

In order to comply with the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance,
the Group emphasises the importance of adhering to
anticorruption practices for all employees. The Group regards
honesty, integrity and fair play as its core values that must be
upheld by all employees of the Group at all times. As such, the
Board has instructed the Group’s employees are not allowed to
solicit or accept any advantage for themselves or others, from
any person, company or organisations having business dealings
with the Group.

Company’s key relationships with its employees

The Group has provided employees with opportunities to
advance their career. The Group’s policy is to encourage
employees to take part in professional examinations, seminars
and training courses related to their roles and duties through
leave grants. Competitive remuneration is also offered to
employees and their performance is reviewed on an annual
basis reflecting each employee’s contributions to the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED ARRANGEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Company's operations. Details
of the share option scheme arrangement can be referred to
the “Share Option Scheme” section in this Directors’ report and
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board established a dividend policy (the “Dividend Palicy”) in
January 2019. The Company endeavours to maintain adequate
working capital to develop and operate the business of the
Group and to provide stable and sustainable return to the
shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the
Board may consider relevant.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company's dividend distribution record in
the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the
future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands and the Company's articles of association and
any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will
continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in its
sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or
cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/
or in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

B B ER

EZeR_T-NF-ARRREEE (BB
BE]) - ARABNERHRENEEEDSAHE
RMEERAEEER I R/ARBBRREREE
kST ek

REBXNRER EXQREE (AT EE)
AEENERLRBRMBEERR ARENELR
BHKE-BEMAL- TAEEESFR - EXR
X BEREAEENRKERS  NEENR
HEDMN  XHRENANRS NEETE
XHEEEREERGIAREES AR /ME
PR EMEmAREE-

ARBYEEMBLEEENREDEL R AR
ABENREDRLHLIF—EBRREARRA
BRI BE B Ik 3k S AR B K »

ARABERMENREBEAETHEFE QAN
R AR AR A AR A R R A AR B A i ROR B
MEEAIR S - EF 255 AR RS BRAL KR
BHEE-RBHBISEEREN EF] BN
K/ s BB BB

B T 5 T DA 1] 77 5% M A 7 46 LA LR
AR B BRI RN AR & A
FRSADTERARELTH SRR S -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

K



K

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of movements in either the Company’s convertible
bonds, share capital and share options during the Year are set
32 and 34 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

out in notes 31,

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During in the Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 1.61% of the total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to 1.13%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted to
94.17% of the total cost of sales for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
86.21%.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates
or any shareholders which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the Year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Mr. LAU Man Kit
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice
(appointed on 31 March 2021)
Mr. LIN Jason
(appointed on 31 March 2021)
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong
(appointed on 1 June 2020 as a non-executive Director and
re-designated as an executive Director on 31 March 2021)

Non-executive Director:
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang Raoberta

Independent non-executive Directors:

Ms. CHOI Mei Ping

Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (resigned on 6 May 2020)

Mr. ONG King Keung

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (appointed on 5 August 2020)

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, Ms. CHOW Man Ki
Kelly, Mr. LAU Man Kit and Mr. ONG King Keung shall retire by
rotation in accordance with Article 84(1), and Ms. CHOW Nga
Chee Alice and Mr. LIN Jason shall retire in accordance with
Article 83(3). All of them (other than Mr. LIN Jason] being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election thereat. Mr. LIN is
not contactable since May 2021 till the date of this annual
report and shall be subject to re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting pursuant to Article 83(3).

The Company confirmed that it has received from each of its
independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the year ended 31
March 2021 and it still considered them to be independent as
the date of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

During the Year, none of the Directors has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, any of the subsidiaries or its holding company was a
party and in which any Director had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at the time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for Directors’ Liability Insurance
Palicy for indemnifying their liabilities arising from corporate
activities. The coverage and the amount insured under such
policy are reviewed annually by the Company.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2021, the following Directors of the Company
had or were deemed to have interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Future Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) (i) which were required to be natified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to
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section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred & GEM i BI55.46E5.67K 6B E Ei#
to herein; or (i) which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of TE45X SR TEAMERR G LB AT 2 #
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by the  zmIUAE :

Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange:
(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company (a) RERATRBZHER
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Number of capital of
Name of Directors Nature of interest Shares held the Company
EARRDF
B#ITRA
EEnS EmEftE FisROEE BMABEDHL
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi Beneficial owner 27,573,529 3.22%
JB 2 5t 55 EmEAA
Held by trust (Note 1) 402,121,240 47.01%
BEFERA (MaET)
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly Held by trust (Note 1) 402,121,240 47.01%
Ehg Rognn BEFERA (A1)
Notes: Hat
1. These shares are registered in the name of Beglobal 1. &% 1 7y A Beglobal Investments
Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited )2 Golden Treasure Global
Limited. Beglobal Investments Limited and Golden Treasure Investment Limited 2 & & & & °
Global Investment Limited are companies indirectly owned Beglobal Investments Limited } Golden
by a discretionary trust, the discretionary objects of which Treasure Global Investment Limited 3
are Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly and their REBEEXTHRAEEN L E  BAXE
family. HEREFBZRBEREEREAZA
7o
2. The total number of the issued share capital of the 2. ARARZE_—F=A=+—HZE
Company as at 31 March 2021 was 855,384,669. BEITRR A 1B 20 5855,384,6690% °
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(b) Long positions in the underlying shares of the (b) RAQATHBERGZHR
Company
The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 ARAERZZE—_FN\A+HBERMA—
August 2012 which the Board may, at their discretion, THRERERTE Bl EEGARNERSE
offer employees, Directors, or any other persons who HASEELERZER EFHEME
have contributed to the Group to take up share options to A TREEZEL  IRE SR E £ 5T
subscribe for shares subject to the terms and conditions 2GR R A 4N P SREE IR 1 < B AR A o
stipulated in that share option scheme.
Details of the share options granted to the Directors RAFE ZESHEETETESZ2ER
under the Schemes and movements in such holdings EREBEEEHFBELOT:
during the Year were as follows:
Number of
Number of Number of Number of options Number of
options held options options cancelled/ options held
as at granted exercised lapsed as at
1 April during during during 31 March
Name of Directors Option type 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2021
R-2-%fF REEE RAEE REFE  RZB=-F
BRE MA-BfiE Ritiz iz H¥/%%  ZA=1-H
ESfg kbl BREHA BREHA BREYE ZEREZE FRBEREYE
(Note 1) (000) (000) (000) (000) (000)
(1) (F1) (F4) (F1) (F13) (F13)
Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi 2015A 2,000 - - (2,000) -
REMEE 2017A 8,500 - - - 8,500
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly 2015A 750 - - (750) -
[F gLt 2016A 7,500 - - - 7,500
2018A 7,500 - - - 7,500
Mr. LAU Man Kit 2015A 750 - - (750) -
Ly St 2016A 750 - - - 750
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang Roberta 2015A 750 - - (750) -
RPEHTLL 2016A 750 - - - 750
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping 2015A 730 - - (750) -
BEILT 2016A 750 - - - 730
Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk 2016A 750 - - (750) -
ZHMEE
Total 5t 31,500 - - (5,750) 25,750

Note 1: Details of specific categories of share options are
disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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In addition to 8,500,000 number of Shares which would
be allotted and issued upon the exercise in full of the
options offered to Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi under the share
option scheme of the Company as mentioned above, and
8,550,000 number of Shares granted to him on 16
August 20189 pursuant to the Share Award Scheme,
55,147,057 number of Shares which would be allotted
and issued upon the exercise in full of the convertible
bonds held by Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, as at 31 March 2021.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
or was deemed to have any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFQO), (i) which were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFQJ; or (ii)
which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
which were, pursuant to rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by
Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 March 2021, the
following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or was deemed to have, interests or short in
the shares or underlying shares (i) which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or (ii)
who is expected, directly and indirectly, interested in 10% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred
to therein:
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Long position in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

RARBRO REBERD TR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of

Name of Shareholders Shares held the Company
HARAT BT

BRREHE FERGEA BRAMAOBES
Sinostar FE (PTC) Limited (Note 1) (K75 1) 402,121,240 47.01%
Treasure Offshore Holdings Limited (Note 1) (#{7£1) 402,121,240 47.01%
Beglobal Investments Limited (Note 2) (#f:22) 402,121,240 47 .01%
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited (Note 2) (#1:2) 72,500,000 8.48%
KO Kin Hang = #17 43,375,000 5.07%

Notes:

1.

Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi, Ms. CHOW Man Ki, Kelly and their family
are the beneficiaries of a discretionary trust of which Sinostar FE
(PTC) Limited (“Sinostar”) is the trustee. Sinostar as the trustee
of the discretionary trust is the sole shareholder of Treasure
Offshore Holdings Limited, which is the sole shareholder of
Beglobal Investments Limited.

Beglobal Investments Limited directly holds 329,621,240 shares
of the Company (representing approximately 38.53% of the
issued share capital of the Company) and indirectly holds
72,500,000 shares of the Company (representing approximately
8.48% of the issued share capital of the Company) through
Golden Treasure Global Investment Limited as at 31 March
2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a share

option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the primary

purpose of providing incentives to directors, eligible employees

and participants who have contributed to the Group, and will
expire on 14 August 2022. Under the Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to certain

employees of the Group and any distributor, contractor, business

partner, promoter, service provider, customer, supplier,

consultants, agents and advisers or any person who, in the sole

discretion of the Board, has contributed or may contribute to the

Group in recognition of their contribution to the Group.
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The number and exercise prices of outstanding share options,
which were granted before 1 April 2020, as at 31 March 2021
were adjusted due to share consolidation effective on 2 May
20189. As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares of the Company available for issue under the Scheme is
85,538,466 shares, which represents approximately 10.0% of
the number of total issued shares of the Company, and the
Company had 67,750,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme, which represented approximately 7.9% of the
Company's shares in issue as at that date.

As at 31 March 2021, the remaining life of the Scheme was
approximately 1 years and 5 months.

HRBRDAEHFRZE—NAFRAZBES K=
E-TFMNA—BZRIR DO ARITEERE
RZEZ—F=A=1T—HZEHE RTHEEE
EITHAE - NAFHAH  RIBZET 8 L2317
ZARNEIRD B2 H85,538,4668% - AHE R A
NAIBEBITRMABHEN10.0% KD FIREZ
&M RTTE 2 B A67,750,0001% B E
AZBARFEEITRNA7.9% -

—FZA=t—R ZEHTFRY

Number of
Number of Number of options Number of
Number of options options cancelled/ options
options granted exercised lapsed held as at
held as at during during during 31 March
Category Option type 1 April 2020 the Year the Year the Year 2021
R-B-FF REFE REFE REFE RZB=--F
mA—H Rz TEz 2%z =ZA=+-H
kYl R R FEBRERE BRERE BREHE BREZE MEBREHE
('000) ('000) ('000) ('000) ('000)
(F1) (F) (F1n) (F) (F1)
Directors & % 2015A 5,000 - - (5,000) -
2016A 10,500 - - (750) 9,750
2017A 8,500 - - - 8,500
2018A 7,500 - - - 7,500
Employees & & 2018A 15,000 - - (7,500) 7,500
Advisors 8 2015A 1,000 - - (1,000) -
2016A 1,500 - - - 1,500
2018A 22,500 - - (15,000) 7,500
2020A - 25,500 - - 25,500
Total 425+ 71,500 25,500 - (29,250) 67,750

Note: Details of specific categories of share options are disclosed in  A/7F: BB ELERIERRE 2 FIERGE T BHREMN
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

HO6HE -
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THE SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 14 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”), the Board adopted
the Share Award Scheme which has taken effect immediately.
The following is a summary of the principal terms and
conditions of the Share Award Scheme:

Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to recognise and
reward the contribution of Eligible Persons, which are defined
below, to the growth and development of the Group, to give
incentives to Eligible Persons in order to retain them for the
continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of ten (10) years commencing on the Adoption Date.

Eligible Persons

Pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme, the
following classes of participants (each an “Eligible Person”) are
eligible for participation in the Share Award Scheme:

(a) any employee (an “Employee”) (whether full time or part
time, including any executive director but excluding any
non-executive director) of any member of the Group or any
entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds any
equity interest;

(b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or any Invested Entity;

(c) any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant to or
expert in any area of business or business development of
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; and
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(d) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group,

and, for the purposes of the Share Award Scheme, the
awarded shares may be made to any company wholly owned by
one or more of the above participant(s). The eligibility of any of
the Eligible Persons to an awarded shares shall be determined
by the Board from time to time on the basis of the Board's
opinion as to his contribution and/or future contribution to the
development and growth of the Group.

The grant of the awarded shares to the Eligible Person(s) is
through (i) the purchase of awarded shares by the Company’s
administration committee or the trustee of the Share Award
Scheme; and/or [ii) issue of new awarded shares under the
general mandate approved at the Company’s general meetings.

Save as the awarded shares granted on 16 August 2019 and
14 October 20189, the Company has not granted any awarded
shares.

For further details of the Share Award Scheme, please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 14 August 2019.

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections headed “DIRECTORS’ AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVES' INTERESTS AND SHORT PQOSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” and “SHARE OPTION
SCHEME" above, none of the Directors or employees of the
Group or their associates were granted by the Company or its
subsidiaries the rights to acquire shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had exercised any
such rights as at 31 March 2021.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The primary goal of our policy for remuneration packages is to
ensure that the Directors are fairly rewarded and that they
receive appropriate incentives to maintain high standards of
performance.
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Details of the Director's emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Saved as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, no other connected transactions (including
continuing connected transactions) were entered into by the
Group under the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders or the
substantial shareholders of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or
has any other conflict of interest with the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER THE
RULE 17.50A(1) OF THE GEM LISTING RULES

Mr. ONG King Keung, an independent non-executive Director,
has resigned as an independent non-executive director of My
Heart Bodibra Group Limited (stock code: 8297) with effect
from 11 May 2021, and was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of K Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8475) on 6 May 2021.

Mr. TSUI Wing Tak, an independent non-executive Director, has
resigned as an executive director of Aurum Pacific (China)
Group Limited (stock code: 8148) with effect from 3 December
2020, and was appointed as an executive director of CBK
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8428) on 11 December 2020.

The shares of above four companies are listed on GEM.
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AUDITORS

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of CHENG & CHENG LIMITED as auditors of the
Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants
BRER & 3T ER R AT A R A

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability]

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 56 to 179, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, consolidated statement of other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. \We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed
in our audit

WREEER

FAREZFHERBERMNEXAE  R/YA
PGEAMBBRRLBERRRERZTH ZFE
HEAERMEZERESMBRER I Eﬁfi
RFETTRIEN - R HZEFEREHE

Bo

HEERER

ERHEX
MAEEZER

Impairment assessment of goodwiill,
related property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Refer to Notes 18, 19 and 20 to the
consolidated financial statements

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying
amounts of goodwill, related property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use
assets amounted to HK$nil (net of
impairment), HK$572,000 (net of
impairment) and HK$921,000 (net
of impairment) respectively,
attributable to the cinema investment
and management business cash-
generating units are assessed
annually whenever there is an
indication that the cash-generating
unit may be impaired, for impairment.

Impairment tests require the
estimation of recoverable amounts of
the relevant cash-generating units and
group of cash-generating units. The
recoverable amount of the cash-
generating units and group of cash-
generating units was determined using
value in use calculations, based on
discounted future cash flows forecast
prepared by the management of the
Group as detailed in Note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

We identified the impairment
assessment as a key audit matter
because it involves a significant
degree of judgement made by
management which includes:

— Preparing future cash flow
forecasts for the relevant cash-
generating units and group of
cash generating units; and

— Selecting and applying appropriate
growth and discount rates.

Our procedures in relation to
impairment of goodwill and
related property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets
included:

— Assessing the reliability of
management’s forecasts by
comparing previous budgets
to actual results;

— Assessing the reasonableness
of the key assumptions of the
forecasts based on our
knowledge of the industry and
evidence provided;

— Understanding key controls
over the accounting
estimates of recoverable
amounts;

— Reconciling input data to
supporting evidence and
checking the mathematical
accuracy of the value in use
calculations; and

— Performing sensitivity analysis
on the key inputs for the
management’s forecast of
the impairment assessment.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. WWe do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal contral.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.
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° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’'s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consoclidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. \We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEH RS

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Chun Sing

Practising Certificate number PO6998

Hong Kong, 29 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Wzt FTET FET
Revenue g 5 7,8 6,860 22,888
Cost of sales and services $HE R AR B AR (2,994) (9,339
Gross profit EF 3,866 13,493
Other revenue and other net income H b U 2 K B AU A g 4,693 3,460
Other loss Higsia 10 - (14,512)
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EHMAX (217) (4,434)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (22,245) (34,107)
Impairment of property, plant and Mm% BB RRERE
equipment (2,753) (3,806)
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE (2,814) (7,770)
Impairment of goodwill SR (950) -
Gain on lease termination ME &Iz e 218 -
Share-based payments AR D AR 2 3R 34,36 (2,013) (1,720)
Share of result of an associate SME—HBE A REE 57 (50)
Finance costs R E B AR 11 (2,736) (5,265)
Loss before taxation BrAR A Es 18 12 (24,894) (54,711
Taxation Bi1E 15 (16) (131)
Loss for the year KFEEEE (24,910) (54,842)
Loss attributable to: FE{LEiE .
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ P =N (21,488) (41,475)
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR (3,422) (13,367)
(24,910) (54,842)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share BRER 17
Basic and diluted BERREHE (2.51) (4.85)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FaRtElkaE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-ZF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss for the year KEEFE (24,910) (54,842)
Other comprehensive loss Hitt 2 EEE
Item that may be reclassified HEnE 7 HEZBm HE -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREBINEREFZERZHE
foreign operations
— Exchange differences arising during — ANFEEA ZE K Z5
the year (332) (844)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, 7N & H A2 HEEE - IR IR
net of tax (332) (844)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFEEZHEBHAE (25,242) (55,6886)
Other comprehensive loss BEEMEEEE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VNN F SN (435) (418])
Non-contralling interests SEVERRAE 2 103 (426)
(332) (844)
Total comprehensive loss BiEE2EEEARE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZZ =N (21,923) (41,893)
Non-controlling interests JEVERR R = (3,319) (13,793)
(25,242) (55,686)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRER

At 31 March 2021
RZFEZ—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—-fF —B-FF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hi st FET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W WE REE 18 572 5,571
Right-of-use assets EREEE 19 921 10,829
Goodwill EES 20 - 950
Interests in an associate M — R & R Rl 21 376 169
Loan to an associate m—EBEARHER 21 18,931 17,512
Deposit for acquisition of non-controlling W& JEFE R IR S
interests 25 - 721
Rental deposits HEZS 24 355 657
21,155 36,409
CURRENT ASSETS RENEE
Inventories BE 22 945 -
Trade receivables JRE U5 BR 3K 23 206 132
Other receivables, deposits and Hitb fEU IR e RTER
prepayments FRIE 24 6,339 6,203
Payments to parties for procurement MREZREBHRE A
for investment of cinema business 2R 25 - 1,452
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEFEY 26 15,303 38,146
22,793 45,933
CURRENT LIABILITIES FB
Trade payables JE 1 BR 3K 27 203 347
Other payables and accruals Ho At fE A 3B S BT FROR 28 3,877 3,342
Contract liabilities EHIaE 29 7,994 7,405
Convertible bonds AR EZ 31 - 9,747
Lease liabilities HEaRE 30 3,070 3,877
15,144 24,718
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFE 7,649 21,215
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHAERABAE
LIABILITIES 28,804 57,624
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MBIKRAER

At 31 March 2021
RZFEZ—F=A=+—H

2021 2020
e —EETF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k23 FExT FHET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Convertible bonds Al RRE S 31 13,752 11,793
Lease liabilities HEeaE 30 6,231 14,237
19,983 26,030
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 8,821 31,594
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAR#HE
Share capital [N 32 8,554 8,554
Reserves & 845 26,977
9,399 35,531
Non-controlling interests FEFE R = 37 (578) (3,937)
TOTAL EQUITY AR 8,821 31,594
The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 179 TFH# AR E568 2 £1798 v G40 BHRED K

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —ZT-—F XA+ hBEEFeH ERERE

directors on 29 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: P2 WHTNEEREERS:
CHOW Man Ki Kelly CHOW Nga Chee Alice
A X’ B M
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
BE EE

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FeEREER

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

Equity Share Attributable
component Share award to owners Non-
Share Share  Contributed of convertible options scheme  Exchange Accumulated of the  controlling
capital premium surplus bonds reserve reserve reserve losses Company interests Total
TRRES BiE LR AR
REx  RGEE B4R EENo  BRERR B EXRE ZHERE  BEARE  FERER &zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL TR AL TEL TR TR TEL TEL TR TAL TEL
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A
=1-A 136,861 420,810 3,930 76,520 53,022 - (1,228)  (621,836) 68,079 9,856 77,935
Loss for the year TEEEE - - - - - - - (41,475) (41,475) (13,367) (54,842)
Other comprehensive loss ~— AFEEH2E
for the year BE
— Exchange differences —BEEEZ
anising on translation EXZER - - - - - - (418) - (418) (426) (844)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2EFEEE
for the year - - - - - - (418) (41,475) (41,893) (13,793) (55,686)
Extinguishment upon
extension of convertible i
bonds - - - (51,012) - - - 58,597 7,583 - 7,585
Recognition upan extension
of convertible bonds - - - 40 - - - - 40 - 40
Lapse of share options BRELN - - - - (42,7586) - - 42,756 - - -
Equity settled share award ~ SAEREZ 2R (A
arrangement HERH - - - - - 1,720 - - 1,720 - 1,720
Capital reduction BARER (128,307) - 128307 - - - - - - - -
At 31 March 2020 R-B-Z£=f
=+-R 8,554 420,810 132,237 25,548 10,266 1,720 (1,646)  (561,958) 35,531 (3,937) 31,594
Loss for the year TEEER = = - - - - - (21,488) (21,488) (3,422) (24,910
Other comprehensive loss A EH2E
for the year BE
— Exchange differences —BEEEY
anising on translation EAZE - - - - - - (435) - (435) 103 (332)
Total comprehensive loss ~ AFE2EEELE
for the year - - - - - - (435) (21,488) (21,923) (3,319) (25,242)
Capital contribution from ~ FEHRERTE
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - - 1,183 1,183
Redemption of convertible BRI R E%
bonds - - - (25,508) - - - 25,508 - - -
Issue of share options BiTERE - - - - 893 - - - 893 - 893
Lapse of share options BREAR - - - - (3,596) - - 3,596 - - -
Lapse of share awards BECIES - - - - - (1,153) - 1,153 - - -
Acquisition of non-contralling 4B K B2 EIE)
interests in subsidiaries RE & - - - - - - - (6,222) (6,222) 5,495 (727)
Equity settled share award ~ SAEGEZE 2R A
arrangement REZH - - - - - 1,120 - - 1,120 = 1,120
At 31 March 2021 RZZ--E=fH
=1+-8 8554 420810 132,237 40 7,563 1,687 (2,081)  (559,411) 9,399 (578) 8,821
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETHCHESRE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation Al EE (24,894) (54,711
Adjustments for: BT B IE:
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss R R 2 B & BN 2,736 5,265
Interest income B U A (188) (808)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1%  B&E MR EITE 889 2,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 1,360 3,831
Impairment of property, ME - BE KRB BE
plant and equipment 2,753 3,806
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEEZRE 2,814 7,770
Impairment of goodwill BB RIE 950 -
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR TR (B - 325
Exchange gain on loan to an associate m—HBEARRLERZ
BE 5 e (1,419) -
Share of result of an associate DG — S R R A (57) 50
QOther loss EhEE - 14,512
Property, plant and equipment written off MEEmE  BE KR 1,633 7
Share-based payments VARR 7 A BB 2 AP 3R 2,013 1,720
Rent concession HeBER (814) (460)
Gain on lease termination ME&REzRE (218) -
Operating cash flows before working capital LEESEIAZ
changes KEHPRE (12,442) (16,261)
Increase in inventories FEEM (945) -
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables FEURBRZ (1240), R (61) 4865
Decrease/(Increase) in other receivables, HEb e - Ze &
deposits and prepayments A RIER D, () 228 (19,038)
Decrease in trade payables FERTRRFUR (167) (520)
Increase/(Decrease) in deposits received, BlEe  HiEMRIER
other payables and accruals FEEt B I, O L) 362 (1,094)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract liabilities Amal ORd), g (10) 126
CASH USED IN OPERATIONS EEFARS (13,035) (36,322)
Interest received 2R 39 304
Tax paid BEABIE (16) (374)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES K& EEfMACEESEE (13,012) (36,392)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Hi st FER FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETEz2RERE
ACTIVITIES
Net cash repayment from parties for BEHERZBE2FE
procurement 1,452 2,920
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE WENERE
equipment - (2,098)
Advance to an associate BT —HEE QR m -
Repayment received for loan to FA—EBEQARREER
an associate B E R - 16,287
Interests received EAE - 773
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETEFBZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ReFE 1,451 17,882
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBHz2HERE
ACTIVITIES
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (2,591) (2,908)
Interest paid ERHLE (524) (718)
Acquisition of interest in subsidiaries REE2E e Falidi9is
from non-controlling interests NSNS (6) -
Capital contribution from non-controlling  3E3Zf%fEZS T &
interests 1,183 -
Redemption of convertible bonds BB AT AR B (10,000) -
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING REEBFMAZRETE
ACTIVITIES (11,938) (3,626)
DECREASE IN CASH ReRBSEEWRD
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (23,499) (22,136)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUzHERESEEY
THE BEGININING OF THE YEAR 38,146 60,926
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  4ME [ 3 & &) 7 /£ 656 (644)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRZESRESEEY
THE END OF THE YEAR 26 15,303 38,146
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FeERaRER

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non- cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the

MEETBDAMEEARZHIE

mATLIFERS

TRFANANEBEREEHIEFEECEH (B
) -MEEBTEEAETD
ReRECK (IARRRSREH
FEREeRERTHOBRBERIMELRS

B)RAKHE

Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows REZ&fE-
from financing activities.
Total liabilities
Convertible Lease from financing
bonds liabilities activities
RETBREE
TRRES HESE BEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAET FHET
At 1 April 2019 RZE—NFMOHA—H 24,618 20,517 45,135
Financing cash flow BERESRE - (3,6286) (3,6286)
Interest expenses FEFX 4,547 718 5,265
Extinguishment upon extension of R A% & 5 1E B RS 71 84
convertible bonds (19,418) - (19,418)
Recognition upon extension of PIHARR & 25 RE HRRF 1 3R
convertible bonds 11,793 - 11,793
New leases entered RN ATHE - 2,148 2,148
Rent concession HeE=E - (460]) (460)
Exchange adjustments [ o 2 - (1,183) (1,183)
At 31 March 2020 and RZEZEF=A=+—HK
1 April 2020 —ZEZTFNA—H 21,540 18,114 39,654
Financing cash flow BERERE (10,000) (3,115) (13,115)
Interest expenses FERX 2,212 524 2,736
New leases entered RN FTHE - 1,121 1,121
Rent concession HeER - (814) (814)
Lease termination HE&RIE - (7,601) (7,601)
Exchange adjustments b 5 R - 1,072 1,072
At 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=H=+—H 13,752 9,301 23,053

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Bingo Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited ("GEM™).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$"), which is also the presentation currency of
the consolidated financial statements. The functional
currency of the subsidiaries of the Company mainly
includes Renminbi ("RMB”) and HKS$. All values are
rounded to nearest thousand unless otherwise stated.

The registered office of the Company is located at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The head office and principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
202, 2/F., Chinaweal Centre, 414-424 Jaffe Road, Hong
Kong. The Company has its primary listing on the GEM.
The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider
the Company’s ultimate holding company to be Beglobal
Investments Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

2,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (“CO").

The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in Note 3.

WREEE

ZEFAMBRRIBRBEETEGTNMAE
(IBEETMAS])Efh—tIEREE
MR EEN ([FAMBREE]) (1t
TEEMBER 2 @RI E M BREER
FEestER ([EBesr £l kaEgL
B RBBARG T RAIMARE - X FLR
AEUBRRARBETEERERSIMER
RA]GEMEZ AR A ([GEM _EM#RAI])
ZERBEE BB RFUERD (TR FE
B11) 2 WERTE -

AN EFHRAVERERAERZERNER
BERBA T - Fr A B ERAIN LEBERD
R2F 2 & FREEMER - RMFRT K
RETEBVBREEARHAEEEE
BB HmMROTE (NA) WERHFES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in HKFRS Standards and the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for
the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 April 2020 for
the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements:
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and
the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had
no material impact on the Group’s financial position
and performance for the current and prior years
and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the Group has early adopted the
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions for the year ended 31 March 2020,
which is relevant to its operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs

(Continued)

a)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (Continued)

Impacts on early application of Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment which
introduces a new practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to assess whether a Covid-1S-related rent
concession is a lease maodification. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring
as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 that meets
all of the following conditions:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration
for the lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
were not a lease madification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable
lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived
with a corresponding adjustment recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which the event occurs.

The application of the amendment had no impact to
the opening accumulated losses at 1 April 2020.

The Group has benefited from 1 month waiver of and
5 to 12 months reduction of lease payments on
several leases in PRC and Hong Kong amounting to
HK$814,000 recognised in profit or loss for the
current year.

3.

EREEIERMEEEERN

(&)
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RAFERBERNEBTEEY
WE|EER (F)

WERER (BEMBHMEERFE16
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FIREBEREREFHOEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs 3.
(Continued)
b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but b)
not yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments’
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 24
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting
HKFRS Practice Policies’
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates’
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction'
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
—Proceeds before Intended
Use?
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020°
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a
date to be determined.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

3.

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs
(Continued)

b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if
market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it contrals an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with the Group's
accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein, which represent present ownership interests
entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
relevant components of equity and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their
relative interests in the subsidiaries, including re-
attribution of relevant reserves between the Group
and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners
of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the
assets and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-
controlling interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss and is
calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest
and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable, the
cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.
The financial statements of an associate used for
equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances.
Under the equity method, an investment in an
associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise in the Group's share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are not accounted for unless such changes
resulted in changes in ownership interest held by the
Group. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the Group's interest in that
associate, the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance with
HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal
of the entire interest in the interest in the investee
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in
the former associate and the retained interest is a
financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 39, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair
value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate, and the fair
value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing of the relevant interest in the associate is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate. In addition, the Group
accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that
associate on the same basis as would be required if
that associate had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate would be reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the
relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

c)

Investment in an associate (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in
an associate but the Group continues to use the
equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of
the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses,
if any, and is presented separately in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, which represent the lowest level at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an
operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

c)

Goodwill (Continued)

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-
generating units) to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata
basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or
any of the cash-generating unit within the group of
cash-generating units, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal. When the
Group disposes of an operation within the cash-
generating unit (or a cash-generating unit within a
group of cash-generating units), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit (or the group of cash-generating
units) retained.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the
acquisition of an associate is described in note 4(b).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets
that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, or for administrative purposes,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straightline method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20%

Leasehold improvement

Plant and machinery 10%

Computers 25-33%

Furniture, fixtures and 20%
equipment

Motor vehicles 25%

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss ("“FVTPL")) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

ANNUAL REPORT ik

2020/21

4,

FESHEER @

f)

TRMITA

TREEERABEINEEER
KR TEZENGRIZATHNTRER
REMBRRBRIER -FIEAER
TABARHEZEBEETRR
ZEHEEERRTBRER - AEHRT
ABAL L EERT ISR ELED
el RARNEEZSREER
A E -

TREERERABENIARFE
AE-REBRBETEREERTR
BEEEREEAFEIR ([EE
BRBEAVEIRD 2EREER
TRIBERIN) BERER IR B -
ENVITHRARTACREERS
RAaf(mER) ke BTk R
WEEBBRSREAFEIKZESR
EEXGMAEERMEB IR HK
A 2K ERmAER -

ERMEZR-—BAHEEREEL
T BB A 2 AR S AN DA RS B
WARMERZTETABAREZ
FE-BERMNEEBYNTRERNEE
FeMBEZEHFRL (HER)
B8 MR A A R R 2 WA R AR
(BEMBRKERNEBRED X
MRz ERRED XHMAR
Hi g BT E) 28 NERKRE
FFEZ -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (‘ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, loan to an associate, payment to parties
for procurement for investment of cinema business
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises
lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL
should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default
occurring since initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both
guantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit

risk has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

° significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;

FESHEER @

SRIAE)
EHEE(#)
TREERE (E)

(il 1EEERAEEN

EFEBRERUREER
R SN R DI N
BEBEEREAHEMITARL
MENRREEENTSHERR
HemTAZREEVRRAL
B EIEHZAT LR AEEE
BN ENEENEEDN
BR BRBELERNMNEFH
HABEXRARKE HENABRF
FIRTIEIEE K-

EER EFEEEARES
KO TR A EEEE RN
TEH

e TEMIAINI(IMBE)K
NEEEFR2ER KA
H@mERL:

s [FERBRINETISEERERE
EZR PIMEENEX
BLEA BEEAGEED
IR ER AR LT

o TEHIRH MBHLEMN
IR A SRR ) S
BEYEBABRTHEBER
EZBENERIKIEHISS :

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR

ok



22

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEEHBE®
f)  Financial instruments (Continued) fl EMIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE(#)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERE ()

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEEHBE®
f)  Financial instruments (Continued) fl &WMIAE)

Financial assets (Continued) DHEAE (&)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued) e EEE (&)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) (]  1EEREEAEE ()
The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness AEETHERRAN#MNEE
of the criteria used to identify whether there R BB ANE T ZIREZ K
has been a significant increase in credit risk xﬁl I 7 8 8 R E RS AT ¢
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that iR A B IR BL R RUIE
the criteria are capable of identifying significant HA R #5115 B R AN EF o

increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

(il Definition of default (i] E#EZE
For internal credit risk management, the Group RABEERBRERMS &
considers an event of default occurs when EERBE NEEZ B AE N ED
information developed internally or obtained KIRFIISEMBR BEBAT
from external sources indicates that the debtor AAgEREGBREA (BEAE
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the E) X EesE (T EEEE
Group, in full (without taking into account any REBE P 2 EAER @)
collateral held by the Group). BIHIREBOE M-
Irrespective of the above, the Group considers Tim EXFat - REERR &
that default has occurred when a financial BMEE®HHBEI0RANEE
asset is more than 90 days past due unless W BRIEXEEFEABAEAX
the Group has reasonable and supportable FRENBHEBENENE
information to demonstrate that a more lagging R AAEBER -

default criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEEHBE®
f)  Financial instruments (Continued) fl EMIAE)
Financial assets (Continued) EHEE(#)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) SREERE ()

(i} Creditimpaired financial assets

(i) 1ZEBEZTHEE

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(iv]  Write-off policy

]

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for
example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over one
year past due, whichever occurs sooner.

Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit
or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights. The Group
uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking
into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking
information that is available without undue cost
or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

]

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued]

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant
credit information such as forward looking
macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

° External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure the constituents of
each group continue to share similar credit risk
characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued]

(v]  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)]

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial asset

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the
Company’'s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, debt component of
convertible bonds and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

The component parts of the convertible bonds are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument. A conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Company’'s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component (including any embedded non-equity
derivatives features) is estimated by measuring the
fair value of similar liability that does not have an
associated equity component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Convertible bonds (Continued)

A conversion option classified as equity is determined
by deducting the amount of the liability component
from the fair value of the compound instrument as a
whole. This is recognised and included in equity, net
of income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until the
conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to
share premium. Where the conversion option
remains unexercised at the maturity date of the
convertible bond, the balance recognised in equity
will be transferred to accumulated losses. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the conversion option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity
component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

When the contractual terms of a convertible
instrument are modified, the revised terms would
result in a substantial modification from the original
terms, after taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances including qualitative factors, such
modification is accounted for as derecognition of the
original financial liability and the recognition of new
financial liability. The difference between the carrying
amount of financial liability derecognised and the fair
value of consideration paid or payable, including any
liabilities assumed and derivative components
recognised, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

g)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable
is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared
with the carrying amount of the relevant cash-
generating unit or group of cash-generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

g)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. For corporate assets or portion
of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a
group of cash-generating units, including the carrying
amounts of the corporate assets or portion of
corporate assets allocated to that group of cash-
generating units, with the recoverable amount of the
group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-
rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs
of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the
other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit or a group of cash-generating units) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a group of
cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months of maturity when
acquired. Cash and cash equivalents include
investments and advances denominated in foreign
currencies provide that they fulfill the above criteria.

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents would also
include bank overdrafts and advances from banks
repayable within three months from the date of the
advance.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect
of the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, madification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with
similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the
effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases
within the portfolio.

The Group as a lessee

(i} Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(ii]

(iii)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets

The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to leases of staff
guarters that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option. It also applies
the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease
incentives received;

U any initial direct costs incurred by the
Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on
which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEEHBE )
j]l  Leases (Continued) ) HEW®E)
KREFIEREHNA ()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(i) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (i) (FAEEE (&)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease
liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is
reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
underlying leased assets at the end of the lease
term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise,
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(iv]

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the
Group recognises and measures the lease
liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable;

variable lease payments that depend
on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if
the Group is reasonably certain to
exercise the option; and

payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEEHBE )
j]l  Leases (Continued) ) HEW®E)
KREFIEREHNA ()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(iv] Lease liabilities (Continued) (v] HEEE(E)

Variable lease payments that reflect changes
in market rental rates are initially measured
using the market rental rates as at the
commencement date. Variable lease payments
that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which
the event or condition that triggers the payment
occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities
are adjusted by interest accretion and lease
payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and
makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a
change in the assessment of exercise of a
purchase option, in which case the related
lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to
changes in market rental rates following a
market rent review, in which cases the
related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a
separate line item on the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

v

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in
which the Group applied the practical expedient,
the Group accounts for a lease modification as
a separate lease if:

° the moadification increases the scope of
the lease by adding the right to use one or
more underlying assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases
by an amount commensurate with the
stand-alone price for the increase in scope
and any appropriate adjustments to that
stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted
for as a separate lease, the Group remeasures
the lease liability based on the lease term of the
modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of
lease liabilities by making corresponding
adjustments to the relevant right-of-use asset.
When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-
lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. FEERBE®

j]l  Leases (Continued) ) HEW®E)
KREFIEREHNA ()

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(vi] Covid-19-related rent concessions (vi] ¥k ERIEIHBEMEE 2

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as
a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic, the Group has elected to apply the
practical expedient not to assess whether the
change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in
revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than,
the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

o any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient
accounts for changes in lease payments
resulting from rent concessions the same way
it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease
madification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or
waived with a corresponding adjustment
recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or
service (or a bundle of goods or services) that is
distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that
are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

° the Group’'s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Group has received consideration (or an
amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
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4,

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The performance obligations of the Group for
contracts with customers are summarised as
follows:

Cinema investment and management

The Group sells movies tickets, snacks and
accessories to customers both through its own
cinema and through internet sales.

Income from box office takings is recognised when
the movies have been broadcasted and revenue from
selling snacks and accessories is recognised when
control of goods have been transferred to the
customers. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
movies tickets, snacks and accessories.

The advertising income represents the display of
some advertising materials in the area of the cinema
and the airtime right before the start of a movie. The
income of the former is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract terms with a fixed amount.
For the latter, the income is recognised over the
contract terms and the amount of revenue is
correlated to the box office takings of the movie with
the airtime.

The management services income represents
cinema management services provided. The Group
considers the performance obligation is satisfied
over time as the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Cinema investment and management (Continued)

For others, it mainly represents the services charges
for registration of membership and for the re-
issuance of membership cards for those lost cases.
The income was recognised when the membership
cards were issued to the members.

A contract liability is recognised for the prepayment
made by the customers in the membership cards.
The balance will be recognised as revenue at the
point when movies are broadcasted or when the
customers purchase snacks and accessories.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other revenue and
other net income”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss)
before tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and
the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition,
deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
leasing transactions in which the Group recognises
the right-of-use assets and the related lease
liabilities, the Group first determines whether the tax
deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets
or the lease liabilities.

ANNUAL REPORT ik

2020/21

4.

FESHEER @

m)

Fris®i (&)

BT TR B E B MY B & A R B
RAZEEMBZERREREZR
M RERR - HEfi AN SR B BE HE ) T IS = 5
ZED BEAMEREZERAEANEARRK
RAKATRERE B AIER SN B RIZF
EREDZAIIREREZEAMESL
ZEERBREEENAER THE
RGN REERZBE 2 ML
BHIN A B R R R B Bl 07 T HERR -

BEREHRBAEEZRAMESGRSEHRE
HRBELED BEETBAERR
% & BR B0k A A] 4 e B & AR Bk B oy
BERL-

BEREHRREENABNREHNE
ERBENEREEMRERZHEX
ENBEMRCERIELEREDN
BE(RBER)FE-

ERERBABENEEZFERBRA
SERERHNBEHRKRDLBE
HEENABREBZAAGFEM
HZRBER-

LAt EANEEEREAEEE MM
HHERENHERZNRELERA
me ARBEELEEHENRES
FRNEAEEEXHEERE:



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

=z

4,

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

m)

Income tax (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately.
Temporary differences on initial recognition of the
relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising
from subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, resulting from
remeasurement of lease liabilities and lease
modifications, that are not subject to initial
recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

n)

o)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
in Hong Kong and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes in the People’'s Republic of China (the
“PRC") are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as
an expense unless another HKFRS requires or
permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an
asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages, salaries, annual leaves
and sick leaves) after deducting any amount already
paid.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

Share-based payments arrangement

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions

0}

Share options granted to directors and
employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to
employees and others providing similar services
are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase
in equity (share options reserve). At the end of
each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all
relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates,
if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share options reserve.

For share options that vest immediately at the
date of grant, the fair value of the share options
granted is expensed immediately to profit or
loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When
share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry
date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(Continued]

(i} Share options granted to non-employees

Equity-settled share-based payments
transactions with advisors other than
employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that
fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which
case they are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair
values of the goods or services received are
recognised as expenses (unless the goods or
services qualify for recognition as assets).

Share award scheme

The Group operates a share award scheme for the
purpose of providing incentive for directors,
employees and advisors to achieve performance
goals and aligning their interests directly to the
shareholders of the Company through ownership of
shares of the Company.

The amount to be expensed as share-based
compensation expenses is determined by reference
to the fair value of the awarded shares granted,
taking into account all non-vesting conditions
associated with the grants. The total expense is
recognised over the relevant vesting periods (or on
the grant date if the shares vest immediately), with a
corresponding credit to the share award scheme
reserve under equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

p)

q)

r)

Share-based payments arrangement (Continued)
Share award scheme (Continued)

For those awarded shares which are amortised over
the vesting periods, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of awarded shares that are expected
to ultimately vest based on the vesting conditions at
the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative expense recognised in
prior years is recognised in profit or loss in the
current year, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share award scheme reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

r)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise, except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor
likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net
investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal or
partial disposal of the Group’s interests in associates.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group, that is HKS,
using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal invalving loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained
interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group, as follows:

(a]

(b)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or a parent of the
Group.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are the members
of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
s) Related parties (Continued)

(v) the entity is a post-empolyment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vij a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of the parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provide key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with

the entity.

t) Films in progress and film rights

Films in progress represents films and televisions
drama series under production and is stated at cost
incurred to date, less any identified impairment loss.
Cost is transferred to film rights upon completion.

Film rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Their costs are
amortised over the underlying licence period, with
reference to projected revenue.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

=z

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

a) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation
charges for its property, plant and equipment. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry
activities. Management will increase the depreciation
and amortisation charges where useful lives are less
than previously estimated lives or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Periodic
review could result in a change in depreciable and
amortisation lives and therefore depreciation and
amortisation expense in future periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

b)

c)

Impairment of goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets

Determining whether goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets are impaired
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash- generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, a material impairment loss may arise.

Details of impairment assessment of cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated are
disclosed in Note 20.

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables,
and loan to an associate

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on
aging as groupings of various debtors that have similar
loss patterns. The provision rates are based on the
Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes as the forward-
looking information are considered. In addition, trade
receivables with significant balances and credit
impaired, if any, are assessed for ECL individually.

The Group assesses the ECL of loan to an associate
and other receivables individually based on past
repayment record and financial position of the
counterparties.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL of loan to
an associate, trade receivables and other
receivables, are disclosed in Notes 6(b](iii), 21, 23
and 24.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. &@MIR

(a)

Categories of financial instruments (a) €WMIAER

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

AEEEEHEMEERAENR

the Group’s financial assets and liabilities as at the FHRZEREENT

end of the reporting period are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets measured at amortised Z#EK A EN S REE E
cost
Trade receivables JE U AR R 206 132
Loan to an associate M — [ & A RRHE R 18,931 17,512
Amount due from an associate FE U — AT B & R R FIE 373 223
Financial assets included in other FFAHMERRIBERES
receivables and deposits ZEMEE 1,399 1,468
Payments to parties for procurement IR E FBRESK RS H
for investment of cinema business Ttz I8 - 1,452
Bank balances and cash RITEHRNIRS 15,303 38,146
36,212 58,933
Financial liabilities SEAE
Financial liabilities measured at REEKAFEZERBE
amortised cost
Trade payables JE - BR 3K 203 347
Financial liabilities included in other S E Ath FE S 5RIE K AT
payables and accruals HEZEHEE 3,877 3,342
Convertible bonds Al E S 13,752 21,540
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,301 18,114
27,133 43,343
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include loan
to an associate, bank balances and cash, convertible
bonds and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (foreign currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out
below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

(i) Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign currency.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through sales, purchases and
recognised assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which
they relate. The currencies giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States Dollars (“US$")
and Renminbi (“RMB”).

The Group currently does not expect any
significant movements in the exchange rate of
US$ to HK$ and it is mainly exposed to the
effects of fluctuation in RMB. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management
monitors the foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. €#MTITH®

(b) MBEREERMNRBEEE)

(Continued)
(il Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SMEREE (&)
The policies to manage foreign currency risk AEEEBEHFUR—ES
have been followed by the Group since prior BB ANE [E g 2 B - 3053
years and are considered to be effective. REBR -
The carrying amounts of monetary assets and REBEHR BEEERNLE
liabilities which were denominated in currencies BEENGNEEEUINEE
(mainly RMB) other than the functional currency (FEZERBARB)GFTEBENE
of the relevant group companies at the end of EENT:
the reporting period are as follows:
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
=A=+—H =A=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR LIRS 1,686 18,732
Loan to an assaociate m—EBE AR REER 18,931 17,512
Payments to parties for procurement FE% & L £ RS 5
for investment of cinema business X~ A - 1,452
Other payables and accruals H At IE&J'E‘Jr (147) (113)
Sensitivity analysis BURE T

The following table indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss after tax (and
accumulated losses) that would arise if foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has
significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period had changed at that date, assuming all
other risk variables remained constant. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the HK$ and the US$ would be
materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the US$ against other
currencies.

TREJNBERRAEEE
I 25 K [ i 9 9 DEE [ o S B 0
ZALREY (RERAEEM
Rl 2 BURFE B ) AR KB K
HRER (RRFTEBER)ELN
B Es gt s - S REE
TTRETHBEEZE ISR
KL R EMEME & EFE
BEEIMIBNEATE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

6. €MIT R

(b) MBEEEERMRBEEE)

(Continued)
(il Foreign currency risk (Continued) () SMEREE (&)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRE W (&)
2021 2020
—Bz-f —E-ZF

Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) Loss after (decrease) Loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange accumulated exchange  accumulated

rates losses rates losses

ExL#/  BEEER BxtH/ BEGESR

(T %) REFTER (i) REFESE

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TEx

Renminbi ARE 5% (1,023) 5% (1,879)
(5%) 1,023 (5%) 1,879

Results of the analysis as presented in the
above table represent an aggregation of the
instantaneous effects on each of the group
entities’ loss after tax and equity measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had been
applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which expose
the Group to foreign currency risk at the end of
the reporting period. The analysis excludes
differences that would result from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations into the Group’'s presentation
currency. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(ii]

(iii]

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
loan to an associate rates.

The Group is exposed to the cash flow interest
rate risk due to its bank deposits, carrying
interest at variable rates which is disclosed in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and fair value interest rate risk due
to its loan to an associate and convertible
bonds carrying interest at fixed rates which are
disclosed in Notes 21 and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy and does not use any
derivative instruments to reduce its economic
exposure to the changes in interest rates.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group’s
loan to an associate and convertible bonds bore
an imputed interest at fixed rate and the bank
deposits are carrying minimal interest rates.
Management considers the exposure to the
changes in market interest rate should not be
materially enough to cause adverse financial
effect on the Group’s position.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from the ordinary
course of its operations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE—_FT-—F=-A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iii]

Credit risk [(Continued)

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to cash at bank, trade and other receivables
and deposits and loan to an associate.
Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

Cash at bank are placed with high-credit-quality
institutions and directors of the Group consider
that the credit risk for such is minimal.

In respect of trade receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. Debtors
with overdue balances, which will be reviewed
on a case-by-case basis, are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

In order to minimise the credit risk in respect
of trade and other receivables, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount at the end of
each reporting period to ensure that adequate
allowances are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade
balances individually or based on provision
matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Group consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group to
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

lii]  Credit risk (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to
have low credit risk and therefore the loss
allowances are measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables. To measure the ECLs,
trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group
has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and ECL. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, trade
receivables that are individually significant and
credit impaired have been separately assessed
for impairment. The Group makes periodic
assessments on the recoverability of the
receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical
settlement records and past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
debtors in relation to cinema investment and
management operation. The Group’s trade
receivables arise from revenue of these business.
In view of the history of business dealings with
the debtors and the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them, management
believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable
balance due from these debtors saved for the
debtor related to the impaired trade receivable
disclosed below. Management makes periodic
assessment on the recoverability of the trade
and other receivables based on historical
payment records, the length of overdue period,
the financial strength of the debtors and whether
there are any disputes with the debtors. The
directors consider the Group’s credit risk of
these receivables to be low except for the
impaired trade receivable disclosed below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(i} Credit risk (Continued)

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 March 2021, the balance
of loss allowance in respect of these individually
assessed receivables was Nil (2020:
HK$325,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and the loss allowance
in respect of the individually assessed
receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 2020:

6.

&€MTHG®

(b)

BMERBEEE M RBGR (E)

(i)

1= B (&)

HREBENGEEMERENTF
sf [8] 4 14 77 7 B2 K 5% 78 /9 FE IR
FIES gt R E B R
BRI - R—TE=-_—F=A
=+ — 8 @7 H FE UK
BREEBREBRES AT (ZZ
—Z 4 :325,000%7T) °

TREIR-_ZF-_—FK=-F
—EE=-A=1+—H@ERIFFRE
& Wi R TR Y R T ARE % RS 1R
AERR -

As at 31 March

R=A=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E_EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Gross carrying amount FREE - 325
Loss allowance BEEE - (323)
Net carrying amount FREDFE - -

The credit quality of loan to an associate and
other receivables has been assessed with
reference to historical information about the
counterparties default rates and financial
position of the counterparties. The directors
are of the opinion that the credit risk of these
debtors is low due to the sound collection
history of the receivables due from them.
Therefore, the Group assessed impairment of
these balances based on 12-month ECL and
expected credit loss rate of these debtors is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision
was made as of 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(Continued)

(i} Credit risk (Continued)

6. €#MTITH®

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) MERMEEENRBEEE)

(i) 1EEER (&)

The following tables show the movement in
lifetime ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach:

T&RIRARR B ITED BR
U IER 2 2 RESREEER
2528

Lifetime ECL
(credit-
impaired) Total
=HREE
FEFR
(EERE) &ast
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
As at 1 April 2019 R-ZZE-hFEWMA—H 11 11
Impairment losses recognised EHRBEERE 325 325
Write-offs b (11) (11)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZB-EF=ZA=+—-HK
and 1 April 2020 —E-_FEFMA—H 325 325
Impairment losses reversed 1 BRI (B 5 18 (71) (71)
Whrite-offs b€ (270) (270)
Exchange adjustments bE 5 A 16 16
As at 31 March 2021 R-E-_—=A=+-—H - -
Concentration risk ey
The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced AEEBNEERREAETIES

mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer and sundry debtor rather than the
industry or country in which the customers and
sundry debtors operate and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers or sundry debtors. As
at 31 March 2021, 25% (2020: 67%) of the
total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest trade debtor. 91% (2020:
92%) of the total other receivables and
deposits and loan to an associate was due from

an associate of the Group.

BEREPRMIEEB A ZER
BEyE MTIREEFPRME
BERALERTETERERK
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RSB E R &Pk A E
WAEREERRBREEE R
- —4%=ZRA=+—H &
WEE 458 225% (T - F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(iv]  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group
will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of trade payables, other
payables and accruals, convertible bonds and
lease liabilities and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
maintain an appropriate level of liquid assets
and committed lines of funding to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer
term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management,
including the short-term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by
the board of directors (the “Board”) when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and readily realisable
marketable securities and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 6. &@MIRw@®

(b) MBEREEB N REEKE)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

(b)

(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] REEDREE (&)

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to
be effective in managing liquidity risks.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the Group’s non-derivative
financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual

AEEBBEBFUR—EMN
ARBESRR TRSEHA
MEERBE SRR -

TRENREHRANEEIELT
EemMBE(RAHWIFHAR
EREFE BRERAOMNEK
FFBHE (A RBEHARE
BZHME)FEZRMFE) 2
R W ARA QAR

rates or, if floating, based on the rates current WESER ZFRARZFE:
at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date the company can be required to

pay:
2021
“B--F
Total More than ~ More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Effective undiscounted ~ 1vyearor  lessthan  less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5years  More than
rate amount EHEEE  -FRF SR-FE SRWEE 5 years
ERRE REE REREAE EEX  ORWE  SREF  SRER
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'0OO
TER TER TER TER TER TER
Trade payables ERER - 203 203 203 - - -
Financial liabilities included st AE M ERFIER
in other payables ez 2 RER
and accruals - 3,877 3,877 3,877 - - -
Convertble bonds nHRES 16.60 13,752 20,000 - 5,000 15,000 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 4.16 9,301 10,118 3,384 2,339 4,057 338
27,133 34,198 7,464 7,339 19,057 338
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

6. €MIT R

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b) FIHEMEEBMNRBERE)
(Continued)
(iv)] Liquidity risk (Continued) (v] nEELE (&)
2020
i :2

Total More than ~ Mare than

contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years but

Effective undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
interest Carrying  cash flow  on demand 2 years Syears  More than
rate amount  AAFEER  —FR% SR-FE  ZRPEFE 5 years
ERA% FHE Beness fEE% PRRE SREE SRAE
% HKFOOD  HKEOOO  HK$OOO  HK$OOO  HKSOOO — HK$OOO
FiEn TR ThEL FiEn ThL ThEL
Trade payables ERER - 347 347 347 - - -

Financial liabilities included &t A £ fE T 5UA
in other payables JESHEL
and accruals tRAR - 3,342 3,342 3,342 - - -
Convertible bonds HRES 14.20 21,540 30,000 10,000 - 15,000 5,000
Lease liahilities REEE 717 18,114 20,318 4,637 4,005 8,132 3,944
43,343 54,007 18,326 4,005 23,132 8,544
(c) Fair values (c) ~¥E

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments carried at amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
March 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

=z

7.

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments
based on the reports reviewed by the executive directors
that are used to make strategic decisions. The Group's
operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
two operating segments for the year:

Cinema investment and management business — cinema
investment and provision of cinema management service.

Filmed entertainment, new media exploitations and
licensing businesses — movie production, licensing and
derivatives, crossover marketing, provision of interactive
contents, artist development and last miles engagement.

The revenue from external customers reported to the
management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Revenue between segments are carried out on terms
equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length
transactions.

Segment result represents the profit or loss by each
segment without allocation of central administration costs
including directors’ salaries, investment and other income,
finance costs, share of result of an associate, other loss,
share-based payments and income tax expense. This is
the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

SHMEH

BEERBHITEFAMEHNARERRR
RZBEEEREDH - AEELLEER
REXBUHEEIBEREEER-

REEME ARBERAFEE D RMIE

@ AN
g

TRBREREEER — ¥hREREHR
BT E TR IR o

B ML FRBARRSFELE — €
(e R ROTEIERE  BRTSH
BRGEDAE BAREREMES-

i

MEEBHRE ZRKBIINBE, 2 Wiz
FeBERARE B2 RFE- D
Al 2 W iR R A F X HEMEFR 25N
AR e

DEHEEESIMBZBR REDEF R
TERRN BREFHFS REREMBEK
AN BERN - DIE—EBERARRE A
b B 1R ~ AR D R E T 2 K P57 5
X HAEBLERREREAETE
BROBEFEDEHRAZFAETA -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. 9BEH®
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, TRIEAZMELED BT AKE Z I
results, assets and liabilities by reportable and operating moEE AERBE-
segment.
Year ended 31 March 2021 Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-Z--F=A=t-HLEE IE_RCRESAST-HIEEE
Filmed Filmed
Cinema entertainment, Cinema  entertainment,
investment new media investment new media
and  exploitations and  exploitations
management  and licensing management  and licensing
business  businesses Total business businesses Total
EYRY. £ E/Wei
YRRE NERERR Fhigd HRBER%
REBXK  WiTEEH ait REEEH it &%f% @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THEx THER THER ThEL ThEL ThEL
Segment Revenue 2 ElE 6,860 - 6,860 22,888 - 22,888
Segment Results AREE
Reportable segment result DEEGEES (10,036) 436 (9,600) (13,901) (1,769) (15,670)
Unallocated corporate income RABBERA 2,423 1,279
Unallocated corporate expenses FAEGERT (13,025) (18,773
Share of result of an associate AE-BHEAREE 57 (50)
Other loss HiER - (14,512)
Share-based payments WRG BEE 257 (2,013) (1,720)
Finance costs BEMA (2,736) (5,265)
Loss before taxation BRAIER (24,894) (54,711
Segment Assets AHEE
Reportable segment assets AERHPEE 5,598 3,110 8,708 31,007 7,813 38,820
Interests in an associate R-FHE A RNER 376 169
Loan to an associate A-AEERARLER 18,931 17,512
Unallocated corporate assets RAMCEEE 15,933 25,841
Consolidated total assets GREENE 43,948 82,342
Segment Liabilities AHER
Reportable segment; liabilties EEETEN-T 17,898 - 17,898 26,790 - 26,790
Convertible bonds MhkES 13,752 21,540
Unallocated corporate liabilities RABCEAR 3,477 2,418
Consolidated total liabilities GRBeBERE 35,127 50,748

m ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #WBEH®

For the purposes of monitoring segment information and RERSHEHN RS HESEEIRNE :

allocating resources between segment:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other —

than interests in an associate, loan to an associate
and unallocated corporate assets.

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments —

other than convertible bonds and unallocated
corporate liabilities.

Other segment information:

EEENEER 2HD &0 HER—
Ll oW L F il R Ll W

/NG|

BHEREARDBEEEEERIN -

Hvn HER

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE-E--F=-f=t-HLEE

Filmed

Cinema entertainment,

investment new media

and exploitations

management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
FRE

THERE HERMER
REBEXE  BTEXK tEER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TER
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE - - 1,121 1,121
Interest income MEMA 16 7 165 188

Depreciation of property, plant and mE MR RRERE
equipment 889 - - 889
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 1,173 = 187 1,360
Impairment of property, plant and nE BERXEE

equipment 2,753 - - 2,753
Impairment of right-of-use assets ERAEEERE 1,880 - 934 2,814
Impairment of goodwil HERE 950 - - 950
Gain on lease termination HEHIE 2 W 218 - - 218

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. #WBEH @

Other segment information (Continued): Hit oy BWER (F) :

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE-T-FFIASt-ALTE

Filmed
Cinema entertainment,
investment new media
and  exploitations
management  and licensing Corporate
business businesses level Total
BYRE.
ThRE HEBRER
REBR®E  RiERHB tXEm st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEL TEL TET
Additions to property, plant and NE BERRERE
equipment 2,521 - - 2,521
Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERE 327 - 1,821 2,148
Interest income MEBA 257 30 527 808
Other loss Htv 18 14,512 - - 14,512
Depreciation of property, plant and NE BERIBHE
equipment 2,407 - 25 2,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 3,141 - 630 3,831
Impairment of praperty, plant and NE BERRXEAE
equipment 3,806 - - 3,806
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 6,639 - 1,131 7,770
Impairment of trade receivables FEMER R E 325 - - 325
Revenue from major products and services: REFEERRERBZWE
The Group's revenue from its major products and services AREBKRATEEGERE Z WS :
were as follows:
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Cinema business b 15 6,860 22,888

m ANNUAL REPORT £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

An analysis of Group’s revenue for the year from

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) SEHEHE @
Geographical information: WEER
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the People’s AEBFERNEBRFEARKMBE ([F
Republic of China (the “PRC"). The geographical location of H LK - BE 2 i BIRE P AT
customers is based on the location of the customers, EHME D MARERIRBERIR - IERB
irrespective of the origin of the goods or services. The BEZMEME s BE REERE
geographical location of the non-current assets is based REEEMS  NREEER i‘@EEi‘U" i
on the physical location of assets in the case of property, REELRN —EEE AR NER U
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and the LEEBEENESH KE?\\T:‘B%JE'ZW
location of the operation to which they are allocated in the m R EE D 2 FEREBEEERF
case of goodwill and interests in an associate. Revenue HIEAT
from external customers and information about non-
current assets by geographical location are detailed
below:
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REMBEF 2 s REFRBEE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC-F —F-TF B —ZF-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET THT FHT
Hong Kong 5 - - 376 169
PRC FE 6,860 22,888 1,493 17,350
6,860 22,888 1,869 17,519
Revenue from major customers: REEEFEFZzWE
There are no major customers contributing over 10% of BE_T_—F=A=+t—BLFE #
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021 ﬂzg FERMASEKZBRE10% (=
(2020: Nil). ToTFE) o
8. REVENUE I &=

RAEE  REBEEEH 2 Wamn i

operations, is as follows: T
2021 2020
—EB-—& —E-FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Revenue from cinema business RE T ER 2 WS 6,860 22,888

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

LLeEEZERARAE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

8. REVENUE (Continued) 8. W&uwm
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REEFEHKRZEMAD
customers
2021 2020
—®-—F —E-FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Revenue from cinema business ATE S €
— Sales of movie tickets — HEETR
— at a point in time — X 6,172 18,806
— Sales of snacks - at a point in time —HEZTR — X —FHEE 480 2,651
— Advertising income - over time — BEEWA — BER 27 580
— Management services income — BEERE YA
— over time — BERFE 83 272
— Others (note) — H4h (KfaE) 98 569
Total #Er 6,860 22,888

note: It mainly represents the rental income for claw machines
placed in cinemas, service income for registration of
membership and the income for the re-issuance of
membership cards for lost cards.

Contracts for advertising services typically have a 1 year
to 3 years non-cancellable term in which the Group bills a
fixed percentage on the box office takings. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

The prepaid amounts in membership cards (Note 29)
have no expiration and can be redeemed anytime at
customers’ discretion. The management of the Group
expected that the remaining performance obligation as at
31 March 2021 will be materially recognised as income
within one to two years after the year end.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

=z

9.

10.

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET INCOME 9. HESREMBIA
2021 2020
—E-——%F TR EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Exchange gain b H 1,865 -
Interest income B A 188 808
Government grants (note 1) BT RAL (1) 1,007 598
Rent concession (note 2) HedsE (Wix2) 814 460
Others HA 819 1,594
4,693 3,460

notes: Bt st

1. The government grants represent the subsidies received by 1. BRNEMEREERNFEEETRKE

the Group from the government for the operation of
cinemas in the PRC and related to Employment Support
Scheme provided by Hong Kong Government. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these

BUR R & B E B BT PR R B AT
EMMEN -MEEHEREMA I RE
G RRAE R

grants.

2. It mainly represents rent concession provided to cinemas in 2. HIZHEBR-T-NFHEERRE
PRC for the closure of business due to 2019 Novel (IFBEREFMATEEL AN
Coronavirus (‘COVID-19"). HiRENASESR-

OTHER LOSS 10. HtEiR

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 5
February 2020, the Company has discovered that Mr. YIN
Gang (E1#) ("Mr. Yin"), a then director of certain non-
wholly owned subsidiaries of the Group, is suspected to
have misappropriated certain funds of the Group (the
“Incident”). Based on information obtained by the
Company, the Company believed that an aggregate
amount of up to approximately RMB13 million (equivalent
to HK$14,512,000 as at 31 March 2020) has been
misappropriated by Mr. Yin by way of bank transfer in
November 2013. Mr. Yin has resigned as directors and/
or legal representatives (/£ A1) of those subsidiaries in
April 2020. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Incident does not have impact on the day-to-day
operations of the Group and does not have a material
adverse effect on its cash flows, financial position and
business operations.

BUOARRBHAE-_ZT-_TF_AHAN
NEFBEE ARG BREAERAETIER
EMBARERMESZONMALE ([HE
ENSHBBAEENETES ([ZS
B BEARFNESNER AR FHE
EHNEREBER T —hE+— ANRRTE
EAFATBABAAEEREZHARE
13,000,000 (R =—_ZE=-_ZFTF = A
=+—HB#EEM14,512,000/ T) ° ED%
SER-ZZZZFNAGIZEWNBL
MEERFEARE AR T%%?ﬁ%
ZEHUTELERAEENHEFEE T
TeHHEBELRE PBERRAREKLEE
B E RIS E-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_F_—F=A=1+—HIFE
11. FINANCE COSTS 11. AEAE
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FHF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESR 2 HEEF B 2,212 4,547
Interest expenses on lease liabilities MEBGBZNEX L 524 718
2,736 5,265
12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 12. BFRRAGE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BREBAIEEE MR (FtA) T3I&IE:
(crediting):
2021 2020
—EBE-—F —E_FF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
Auditor’s remuneration % SR B &
— audit services — ZERTE 850 800
— other services — H AR 500 90
Direct expenses of cinema business T EBEERX
(note 1) (K1a1) 2,994 9,395
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BRERREBTE
equipment 889 2,432
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 1,360 3,831
Property, plant and equipment written off #5470 % « B & K& & 1,633 7
Exchange loss b 5 & 18 - 3,112
Impairment of property, plant and equipment #7135 M2 & 2 B E 2,753 3,808
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEEZRE 2,814 7,770
Impairment of goodwill EERE 950 -
Impairment of trade receivables FE W AR SR 2 RE - 325
Gain on lease termination ME&R 2 E (218) -
Short-term lease expenses RHHEERY - 422
Variable lease payments not included inthe W EzF ATHE B EED
measurement of lease liabilities AEMEERN T 81 -
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration) B THXA (BiEE S E)
— Salaries and allowances — ¥& MOERL 8,893 12,198
— Equity settled share-based payments — REBEEREZURG A
7K 885 1,186
— Retirement scheme contributions — BRRETEIHR 888 1,522
Equity settled share-based payments ERERRBEERER
paid to advisors DARR 1 7 B8 2 15K 1,128 534
note: Kt -
1. The direct expenses mainly represent the profit sharing 1. EBEERXTFERENEZHERNERN
paid to film providers. DKo
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the Company's
directors for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020

were as follows:

13. EEM&

BE-_E-_—ER-_F-_TE=/F=+—
BIEFEENSENAR T EE 2
T

Year ended 31 March 2021

BE-ZE-—F=-A=+—HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Share-
Directors’ and other based
fee benefits payments Total
E2ac =431 R &
EE=e REHMEN EREZAR st
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET F&T
Executive Directors HITEE
Mpr. CHIAU Sing Chi B 28t A& - - 365 365
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly 5D e g 120 34 205 359
Mr. LAU Man Kit 2SR E 150 - - 150
Ms. CHOW Nga Chee Alice A (HaE1)

(note 1) - - - -
Mr. LIN Jason (note 2) LIN Jason %t 4 (ff#22) - - - =
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong (note 3] RIS (H5E3) - - - =
Non-executive Directors FEHITEE
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang BR#FE¥H L+

Roberta 120 - - 120
Mr. YIP Yiu Bong (note 3] ERALE (HE3) 100 = = 100
Independent non-executive BUIRITEE

Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BEFLZL 120 - - 120
Mr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (note 4) E2EANB A (M at4) 12 = = 12
Mr. ONG King Keung FaRoR LA 120 - - 120
Mr. TSUI Wing Tak (note 5) BXxERE (HaE5) 79 = = 79

821 34 570 1,425

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 13. EFEE& )

Year ended 31 March 2020
BE_Z-_EF=A=1+—HILEE

Salaries,
allowances Share-
Directors’  and other based
fee benefits ~ payments Total

e Rl ABROA
Exwe REMEN ERZMHR At
HK$OO0O0 HK$FOOO HKSOOO  HKE0OO

FHT FHAT FHT FHET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mpr. CHIAU Sing Chi BESEE - - 610 610
Ms. CHOW Man Ki Kelly S 2t 120 34 177 331
Mr. LAU Man Kit RIS HEE - 120 - - 120
Non-executive Director FHITEE
Mrs. CHIN CHOW Chung Hang PRESEHT 4+
Roberta 120 - - 120
Independent non-executive B ITEE
Directors
Ms. CHOI Mei Ping BHEVLZ+ 120 - - 120
Mpr. TSOI Chiu Yuk (note 4) =LA (faE4) 120 - - 120
Mr. ONG King Keung TR A 120 - - 120
720 34 787 1,541
note 1: Appointed on 31 March 2021 Wil RZZBZ—F=A=+—HEZE
note 2: Appointed on 31 March 2021 and suspended all duties Hiage: RZE-_—F=R=+—HEZEK
and powers on 7 May 2021 RZZB-_—FHALtHEEMERD
K HES
note 3: Appointed on 1 June 2020 as a non-executive director K3 : RZZ_ZEFEXR-—RABZERFEHR
and re-designated as an executive director on 31 March TEEMN_Z-_—F=A=+—H
2021 AERBITES
note 4: Resigned on 6 May 2020 K4 : RZZT_TFRANAEET
note 5: Appointed on 5 August 2020 Wes: RZZZE)\ALBEZE
The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were FXATRHRITESOMES DRSS
for their services in connection with the management of RRE RAEEE R E AR M8 AR
the affairs of the Company and the Group. Xt
The non-executive directors’ and independent non- FPRIFEMITEERBUIERNITEETME
executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for DRBEEEFARTDEEMEERNRE M
their services as directors of the Company. Ao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

HE—

14.

E-_—F=ZA=+—HIEFE

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 14.

Of the five individuals in the Group with the highest
emoluments, no one (2020: one) is a director of the
Company whose emoluments are disclosed above. The
emoluments of the remaining five individuals (2020: four),
are as follows:

ERFAR

AEELERSHFMAREH TR (ZF
—EE I -RB)RARRES AFHERN
EXBE-BRTRARBR(ZFT_FTF :0H)
ANBZHMT

2021 2020

—E-——%F TR EF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 1,978 2,013
Retirement scheme contributions IRRET B R 79 114
Staff share-based payments BTt ft 508 267
2,565 2,394

Analysis of emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and other employees) by emolument
range is as follows:

hesmsMAR (BREFKEMESR)
ZEH MR 2 T

Number of employees

EEAH
2021 2020
—E-—-F —E_EF
Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T AN 5 5

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to
join the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, during the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020, no directors waived any emoluments.

REBEEZZE_—FR-_Z=ZF=H1
—T+—HLEFERN AEEVERAEE
SEHEWMAE (BREES)INEM EAK
EMBEAREE - BESAIEABER 2 ME-
i RBE S R T _TF=
A=+ BLtFERN BESERELM
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_F_—F=A=1+—HIFE
15. TAXATION 15. IRIA
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
The taxation charge recognised e N R 2 1A
in profit or loss comprises: X HEE:
Current tax BVEARR 18
The PRC i R 191
Under provision in prior years BAFERETNR 16 -
16 131

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to
be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The directors of the Company considered the amount
involved upon implementation of the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime as insignificant to the consolidated financial
statements. Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
of the estimated assessable profit for both years.

No provision of Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
there is no assessable profits for the current year (2020:
Nil).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2021 and
2020.
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EA:y—)\i AZ+—H BBILZEE

BECCE—EFEBRK (BFT) (R75) &
BIEZ) (HHJ?UE%J) S AT 1S 1 M AR
HleZEHNERR-_FT—NF=ZA=-1+N
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15. TAXATION (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
tax authority in the PRC has grant concessionary tax rate
at 20% to some of the PRC subsidiaries of the Company
because the size and assessable profits of those
subsidiaries have fulfilled the condition as small and micro
corporations defined by the relevant tax authority.

15. RIE @)

BE_Z_—HR-_FT_FTF=A=1—
BIEFE FEMBEHMRARFSETH
BB AR LEERE20% AA%E
MEBARMRREERVEN D ZHE M
T B0 P9 E 2 B /MR S A5 A

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss REEMIBEEESBR AT 2 BRTAE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or BHERMAT -
loss as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F ZE-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Loss before taxation RELATE R (24,894) (54,711)
Tax at the respective applicable tax rate REBERTEAE ZHIE (5,207) (11,487)
Income not subject to taxation BAERBTBA (427) (371)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AT ﬂf’ﬁtﬁ“ﬁﬁk‘zﬁﬂi 2,016 7,899
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERTBEEEIMETE 3,073 1,674
Tax effect of temporary difference not RERYREZHIMBETE
recognised 545 2,844
Effect of tax concessions granted to PRC % ¥ B K8 A 55 7%
subsidiaries e B B = (218)
Under provision in prior years BEFEREBETR 16 -
Taxation charged for the year REFEFEHRIAX 16 131
Deferred tax assets not recognised ABERELEHRIELE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had unused
tax losses arising in the PRC and Hong Kong of
approximately HK$21,198,000 (2020: HK$12,661,000)
and approximately HK$63,595,000 (2020:
HK$59,597,000) respectively available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profits stream. Under current tax
regulation, tax losses arising in the PRC can be carried
forward for five to eight years from the year in which the
respective loss arose while the tax losses arising in Hong
Kong can be carried forward indefinitely.

RBEHR AEBERETREEEZ
AE)AMIEEES HI£21,198,000/%
T(ZZE-F%:12,661,000/% 1) &
463,595,000 (T - T F:
59,597,000/ 7t ) ] 4 A 1E K 85 K 20
Fl o F P EE R T 2R TR FI 2ROR - B
MABDAREFEBRERECRBEE 1R
BRORBEEN RERRZHEEEY
REBERELEFERTAENFLE
MREEEZRIEEIBE ] ER A

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

15. TAXATION (Continued) 15. IE®)
Deferred tax assets not recognised (Continued) RERELEHEEE (&)

Expiry dates of tax losses arising in the PRC are as

RPBEANHRBEEENZHBENT

follows:
2021 2021 2020 2020
—E-—F B —E-FTF —T-FTF
RMB'O0O0 HK$000 RMB000 HK$'000
AR¥T TExT AR®ETT FHET
2021 —E-—F - - 2,082 2,279
2022 —_=F_— 2,103 2,488 2,103 2,302
2023 e 2,652 3,138 2,652 2,902
2024 —EOF 2,350 2,781 2,350 2,572
2025 —EFRF 2,381 2,817 2,381 2,606
2026 ZEZREF 1,209 1,430 - -
2029 —E-NF 7,221 8,544 - -
17,916 21,198 11,568 12,661

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of RMB11,203,000
(equivalent to HK$13,256,000) (2020: RMBS,301,000
(equivalent to HK$10,180,000)). No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting period, undistributed profits of
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$7,953,000
(2020: HK$13,6839,000). Withholding tax resulting from
the distribution of such profits would amount
approximately to HK$795,000 (2020: HK$1,369,000) if
they are distributed to holding companies/shareholders
outside the PRC. However, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in this respect as the Company controls
the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it has been
determined that it is probable that these profits will not be
distributed in the foreseeable future.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

16. DIVIDEND 16. &R
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a EFETITEBERNEBEE_ZT_—F=H
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). = t+t—HIEFEZEMNRKRE (ZE T4
) o
17. LOSS PER SHARE 17. BREGR
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARBEER
2021 2020
—E--F —ETHF
HK cents HK cents
A A
Total basic and diluted loss per share FREAR R EEEARE (2.51) (4.85)
The loss and weighted average number of ordinary shares AU ESREARAREEEE 2 BE LY
used in the calculation of basic and diluted loss per share B INFE R EmM T
are as follows
2021 2020
—B=-—fF —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TETT
Loss for the year attributable to owners ARG E ANBORER
of the Company Ba (21,488) (41,475)
2021 2020
—B-—F —B-FF
Weighted average number of ordinary AR EERERNREEEE Y
shares for the purpose of basic and 3B R N E 5 AR B
diluted loss per share 855,384,669 855,384,669
The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share EtEHEZ2 T - FR_ZFT-_FTF=H
options granted by the Company and conversion of the =+ —BUEFESREEBERD KGR
Company’'s outstanding convertible bonds are excluded in AN R DR E Z BEREEITE LA R
calculating the diluted loss per share during the years MATEZ IR ESE S B migim s &
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 because they are N BERAHENHESRKREEEEARE
antidilutive in calculating the diluted loss per share. SE AN E o

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. X BWERKE

Furniture,
Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor
improvement machinery ~ Computers  equipment vehicles Total
nE &
NELE BERKSE BN EERRE "E @zt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FaEr FaET FaET FaEx FaEr FaEr
Cost BA
At 1 April 2019 RZE-NEFNA—H 26,497 20,546 353 6,154 1,797 55,347
Additions RE 438 2,083 - - - 2,521
Written off HisH (278) - (66) - - (342)
Currency realignment i 5 3% (1,604) (1,282) (25) (376) - (8,287)
At 31 March 2020 and \7777¢ A=+-H
1 April 2020 “ZZTENA-A 25,055 21,347 262 5,778 1,797 54,239
Written off Wﬁﬁ (8,584) (3,557) (193) (2,031) - (14,365)
Currency realignment Rk 1,744 1,611 15 401 - 3,771
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ-$=A=1-8H 18,215 19,401 84 4,148 1,797 43,645
Accumulated depreciation and R fTEREE
impairment
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NFNA—H 25,935 11,978 335 5,550 1,797 45,595
Charge for the year FEXW 188 2,098 - 146 - 2,432
Written off ki 271) - (64) - - (335)
Impairment for the year FRRE - 3,806 - - - 3,806
Currency realignment TGRS (1,576) (889) (22) (343) - (2,830)
At 31 March 2020 and \—7—7¢ A=+-AH
1 April 2020 “Z-TENA-A 24,276 16,993 249 5,353 1,797 48,668
Charge for the year i&i e 111 686 - 92 - 889
Written off HisH (8,214) (2,600) (184) (1,734) - (12,732)
Impairment for the year ENRE 241 2,492 - 20 - 2,753
Currency realignment Rk 1,707 1,394 14 380 - 3,495
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ-%=A=+-H 18,121 18,965 79 4,111 1,797 43,073
Net book value REFE
At 31 March 2021 RZZZ—-%=R=+-H 94 436 5 37 - 572
At 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZF=f=+-H 779 4,354 13 425 - 5,571
The related property, plant and equipment was assessed B - B K s i B AT RUE AT (S - I
for impairment as part of the impairment assessment of ERBEEREN N —5 (KEE20) -
the goodwill (Note 20).
The property, plant and equipment with carrying amount ERIRIBE R EEHAF 1Bt A &4

of approximately HK$1,633,000 was written off during
the year due to lease termination for a cinema in PRC with
poor business environment. For details, please refer to
Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19.

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases:

ERiERE

REUBRARRITATEBHEZ
B

HK$'000
FET
Net carrying amount at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFMNA—BZEREFE 21,323
Additions NE 2,148
Depreciation charge FrEMX (3.831)
Impairment A (7,770])
Exchange realignment b 5, 58 B (1,041)
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZEF=ZA=1+—HK
and 1 April 2020 ZETFMA—BZREFE 10,829
Additions NE 1,121
Depreciation charge WERS (1,360)
Impairment VERED (2,814)
Lease termination (note) HERIE (M) (7.383)
Exchange realignment bEE 54, 58 B 528
Net carrying amount at 31 March 2021 RZEZ—F=A=+—AZEEFE 921

The right-of-use assets were assessed for impairment as
part of the impairment assessment of the goodwill (Note
20).

note: Due to poor business environment, the Group and the
lessor has mutually agreed to early terminate lease
contract for a cinema in PRC during the year. Right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities therefore decreased by
HK$7,383,000 and HK$7,601,000 respectively. A gain
on lease termination of HK$218,000 was recognised in
profit or loss.

FEREEECDETHENG WIERHE
BERHER — &2 (FfFE20) -

Miat: BMRNERRERE FRAAEERNE
AR5 2 B2 A 4% 1B AR B — R 2B 9 7R
Eem-FAtEREEEREEARGD
I8 4>7,383,000/% 7t ) 7,601,000
BrLeHERIEZ 218,000 TE
RIERER -

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

19. (FRHESEE &)

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Expense relating to shortterm leases HEHEE RN - 422
Variable lease payments nat included in TR AHEAEFEN

the measurement of lease liabilities AEHEE R HK 81 -

Total cash outflow for leases HEMR R A% 3,196 4,048

Additions to right-of-use assets EREEERNE 1,121 2,148

For both years, the Group leases various offices, cinemas
and storage for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of 2 to 15 years. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
staff quarters. As at 31 March 2020, the portfolio of
short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of shortterm
leases to which the short-term lease expense disclosed in
Note 12. The short-term leases for staff quarters have
been terminated during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 19. FRHREEE®

Variable lease payments AREENK

Leases of cinemas are either with only fixed lease BEYRONHERERAETHENRKE

payments or contain variable lease payment that are FENIE13%HEFE (ANHE QTR

based on 11 to 13% net sales, which is total sales less HEMKER)WAZHEENROMEZ

sales tax and charges, and minimum annual lease —REMEMANEENZEFEHRENR

payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment BN REREAEBKEMENEL

terms are common in cinemas in where the Group PRAEER B#E_FT-_—FRK-_F_F

operates. The amount of fixed and variable lease payments F=A=t+—HLFEEN EHTEH

paid/payable to relevant lessors for the years ended 31 HEANETE R S#HEEN K :

March 2021 and 2020:

For the year ended 31 March 2021 R T -—F=HA=1T—HIFE
Number of Fixed Variable Total

cinemas payments payments payments

EXREUAB BEMKR ARNR AREE

HK$'000 HK$000  HK$0O0O0
THETT THETT THETT

(note)
(K1aE)
Cinema without variable lease  E R &S {5 &
payments A 1 707 - 707
Cinemas with variable lease BEATEHEENRD
payments ENA 2 1,254 81 1,335

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Variable lease payments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

19. EFRHESEE »
AREE R (E)

BE_F_FF-_A=F+—HIFE

Number of Fixed Variable Total
cinemas payments payments payments
E¥REE B E &K CIE- RN (RETEEC]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
(note)
(Krat)
Cinema without variable lease AIEEERN A
payments ?E A 1 620 - 620
Cinemas with variable lease BB EHEMNRD
payments EA 2 2,356 (214) 2,142

note: The variable payments mainly represent the over-provision

of variable lease payments in previous year.

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by cinemas with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of revenue in

future years.

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2021, lessors of various
offices, warehouse and cinemas provided rent
concessions to the Group through rent reductions ranging
from 20% to 70% over five to twelve months and waiver

of rent for 1 month.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in
HKFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute

|lease modifications.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

20. GOODWILL 20. EHE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
Cost 528
At the beginning and at the end of the year & ¥R F R 12,423 12,423
Accumulated impairment losses Rt EEE
At the beginning of the year F9) (11,473) (11,473)
Impairment B (950) -
At the end of the year FR (12,423) (11,473)
Carrying amount IREE
At the end of the year FR - 950
The carrying amount of goodwill (net of accumulated FEREE (KR ETTRERE) ED
impairment losses) was allocated to cash-generating units EReELSEMC((REEFEN]) A
("CGUs") as follows: BT
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Cinema business — Cinema Group whiEs — Bk EE - 950
The goodwill arose from the acquisition of Bingo Cinema BHE-_ZTZ—=F=A=1+—RHLFE &
(Shanghai) Company Limited (“Shanghai Bingo”) together BELABWBREYREB 2L EXR
with its subsidiaries (“Cinema Group”) during the year (EB)AERAR (k| LE]) REMNE
ended 31 March 2013, which was engaged in cinema RAE([EFREE]) -
business.
Impairment assessment of goodwill, property, plant HEYREEERENEE UE - BE
and equipment, and right-of-use assets related to the RBEBUREREEENRERN G
Cinema Group
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the BE-_T-—Fr-_ZT-_TF=-A=+—
business performance of the subsidiaries of Shanghai HIEFE e EEMBARMNKE XA
Bingo was below expectation, the management of the BREH AEBEREERR/RTREBLZ
Group concluded there was indication for impairment and ReELBEUGFEREDTRITHEETR

performed impairment assessment on the CGUs of (ERRER
Cinema business.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
EEEEERERAR



50!

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBmRMNE

For the Year ended 31 March 2021

=z

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

20. GOODWILL (Continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill, property, plant
and equipment, and right-of-use assets related to the
Cinema Group (Continued)

The Group estimates the recoverable amounts of the
subsidiaries of Shanghai Bingo, which are considered as
individual CGUs to which the assets belong. In addition,
the management of the Group estimates the recoverable
amounts of the Cinema Group. The recoverable amounts
of the above CGUs have been determined on the basis of
value in use.

The value in use calculations use cash flow projections
based on the latest financial budgets approved by the
management of the Company covering a 5-year period at
pre-tax discount rates of 13.8% (2020: 15.1% to
24.3%). Cash flow projection during the budget period
was based on the operating costs, budgeted sales, growth
rate and gross margin during the budget period and the
budgeted sales and budgeted margin have been
determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations for the future changes in the
market.

For the year ended 31 March 2020, cash flows beyond
the 5-year period are extrapolated using a steady 2%
growth rate. This growth rate is based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and does not exceed the
average long-term growth rate for the relevant industry.

Based on the result of the assessment, the directors of
the Company determine that the recoverable amount of
the CGUs is estimated to be approximately to
HK$1,500,000, which is lower than the aggregate
carrying amount of the CGUs. The impairment amount
has been allocated to each category of property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets, such that the carrying
amount of each category of asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less cost of disposal and its
value in use. Accordingly, the Group recognised
impairment losses on goodwill, property, plant and
equipment, and right-of-use assets of HK$950,000
(2020: Nil), HK$2,753,000 (2020: HK$3,806,000) and
HK$2,814,000 (2020: HK$7,770,000) respectively
during the year 31 March 2021.
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021

BE_F_—F=A=1+—HIFE
21. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE REZEQFHER
2021 2020
—E-——%F TR EF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Unlisted shares 3 £ R4
Share of net assets DIEFEEE 3 (54)
Amount due from an associate (note b) FEUEE & N F31E (MaEh) 373 223
376 169
Loan to an associate (note c) F—EBEANTREER (Mitc) 18,931 17,512
The following list contains the particulars of the Group’'s THREAEREFRK S NTHEE:
associate:
Proportion of ownership interest
EEEERLH
Form of Place of Particulars of ~ Group’s
Name of business incorporation  issued and effective Held by the  Held by Principal
associate structure and operation paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries  activity
EMARILR BRIRAZE  AKEHN
BENRAR EBERES CEBE RAFE ERER ARRBE WEARRE TEED
Goal Creation Incorporated  Hong Kang 100 shares of ~ 49% - 49% Investing in Virtual Reality
Game Limited Bl B HK$1 each and Mixed Reality Project
BB EEERAR 100k G K EE REERERREAER
1ETHRG R
(a) Fair value of investments (a) BEZAFE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s RMERAR AEE 2B R B R
associate is a private company and there was no ARFEBEMIRE L EHIGEmIE -
qguoted market price available for the investment.
(b) Amount due from an associate (b) FEWEE QT ZRE
The amount due from an associate is unsecured, JFE W B & R B 2 PR B AR At
interest-free and repayable on demand. The balance BRBREREE ZERTIAET
is denominated in HK$ and approximate to their fair FTEREERNFERE -

value.

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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21. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

(c)

Loan to an associate

On 30 September 2019, the Group entered into a
loan agreement (2019 Loan Agreement”) with the
associate. Pursuant to the 2019 Loan Agreement,
the Group advanced a loan of RMB16,000,000
(equivalent to HK$18,331,000 (2020:
HK$17,512,000)) to the associate for three years.
The associate placed the loan into a bank as bank
deposit and time deposit for interest income.

The loan is unsecured, bearing interest at annual
rates of 0.4% to 2.1% (2020: 2.1%), which is at
the same interest rate as for bank deposit and time
deposit placed in the bank mentioned above, and
repayable in September 2022.

It is expected that the bank deposit and time deposit
will be kept rolling in a financial institution which is
with high-credit-quality, the management of the Group
considers that the credit risk and the corresponding
expected credit loss of the loan were immaterial.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
material associate is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amount shown in
the associates’ financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs:

21. REREATIHESR »

(c)

[ —EBE QT REER

RZZE-NFAA=TH XEEHE
BeEnmi Y ERBE (2T -1
FERBZE]) -BRE_Z-NFEX
W AEBEREZERABR
AR #16,000,0007T (& R
18,931,000 T (ZZE T4 :
17,512,000 7T) ) » BRHI=F - Z
BEXRBERTFARITIERIRT
17 3N E BR1F SROAE ERA B

ZEEBRAEER TR XE0.4%
E2N%(ZE-TF:2.1%) (&
FHFEARITHRTERREHEF
FEOMERR) BRZFTZ=ZFh
AEE-

B R EREBORPRITER R
EREFEFRARARRREEEER.
AEEEEERRERNEERR
LEBEHEEBRY AEX-

BRXTEBENANMBEERBESRIMD
T-ATHBEMRBZIEYRE RARRES
B BRELNRR M RERAIRERE

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Current assets mEEE 19,310 17,625

Current liabilities MENAE (19,305) (17,735)

Net assets/(liabilities) BE/ (aB)FE 5 (110)

Group’s effective interest REBEHERER 49% 49%

Share of net assets/(liabilities) DMEEE/(AE)FHE 3 (54)

Revenue Iz - -

Profit/(Loss) for the year FEEF, (EE) 116 (101)
Dividend received from the associate FREUEE R EIRE

during the year - -

Cash flows from operating activities REEBZRERE 116 (101)

Cash flows from investing activities REEBZRERE 149 504

Cash flows from financing activities MEXBZRERE 1 (17,080)
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23.

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

INVENTORIES 2. 8
2021 2020
e —ETETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Finished goods SR 945 -
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as EHRARAX T ABRZFERESM
an expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: UM
2021 2020
B —F —EFF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Amount of inventories sold ERESH - -
TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. BEWAER
The aging of the Group’s trade receivables based on the AEBERBEZEREH 2 BURFRE DT
invoice date is analysed as follows: W
2021 2020
B —F —E-FF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Within 30 days 30B A 115 -
31-60 days 31£60H 27 39
61-90 days 61290H 3 -
Over 90 days 90H A E 61 418
206 457
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses i : T8 Hi{z BB B HE = (325)
206 132

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$206,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date, of which HK$16,000 has been past due
more than 30 days but less than 90 days and
HK$47,000 has been past due over S0 days.

RZE-_—F=ZA=1+—HB AKHEK
RSB RRE 48 //2208,0008 T A
ReEAMEBMmERRE Ed
16,000/ T & #8830 H {2 2 TA80H
NA47,0008 T2 @ H90H MK ke
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HE—

23.

24,

E-_—F=ZA=+—HIEFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

For cinema business and filmed entertainment, new media
exploitations and licensing business segment, the credit
terms granted by the Group to its customers normally
ranged from COD (cash-on-delivery) to 120 days. The
Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. All trade receivables are expected to
be recovered within one year.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables are
set out in note B.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

23. BUR®R @)

AT EBARERFIRE HREBHER
FAEXBGHIMmE AKEGETERR
ZEEM-—RARERIWEI208 T %F-
7R 55 8] B0 3 5 R W (o] AR TR A s BRAR
EE-BEREEERARTHRIBIER-
PRE U AR R IABN —F R mE -

FE U R R R BB R R BB A MY 5E6 ©

24, HFENGRIA - BERRAMRIA

2021 2020
—EB-—& —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FExT T
Other receivables H b R IE 564 149
Deposits and prepayments Re RIEMFHIE 1,130 1,711

Monies held by a trust for share award ARkt B2 Bt ElE st A R
scheme BENEHE 5,000 5,000
6,694 6,860

Represented by: &

Non-current assets EMENEE 355 657
Current assets MEEE 6,339 6,203
6,694 6,860

As the monies held by a trust managed by a trustee which
is a licensed corporation under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance and is licensed to carry on the regulated
activities in connection with asset management, the
management of the Group considers that the credit risk
and the corresponding expected credit loss of the monies
were immaterial.
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25. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING 25, WiBERRESZEE HKkE

INTERESTS/PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR
PROCUREMENT FOR INVESTMENT OF CINEMA
BUSINESS

Pursuant to the announcement for the joint venture
agreement (“JV agreement”) dated 9 June 2011, a
subsidiary of the Company entered into a JV agreement
with CineChina Limited (“CineChina”) for the investment of
cinema business in the PRC.

The payments were made to CineChina for the purpose of
materialising the JV agreement:

EREBRSEHIFZRIA

BEBRHA-ZT——FXANLBEREE
wE([6&HE]) FIEZRE KA A
— X W B 2 7 B CineChina Limited
([ CineChina J ) Bt BI3% & &bt £ H5 5]

A AR

3 T3 /% 5% B A & # 3% M 3 {1 CineChina
ZHRA:

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
FET

2020
—E—F4E

—= =

HK$'000
THET

Amount paid to CineChina

% 5t ¥ CineChina 2 318 -

2,173

Analysed as: DR
Current mE
Non-current JERED

- 1,452
- 721

- 2,173

Under the prevailing legal requirements in the PRC,
certain restrictions are imposed on foreign investors for
taking up majority stake in cinema business in the PRC. In
accordance with legal opinion from a PRC lawyer, the
approval for engaging in the foregoing business by the
subsidiaries of the Company has not been obtained from
the respective PRC authorities during the year ended 31
March 2012 and the organising of the above cinema
business had not been completed at 31 March 2012.
CineChina held the fund for the Group and would settle the
cost incurred in procurement of the investment of cinema
business in the PRC.

BREBERTHPEEZZRTE IEEEER
FEBAZREBSAB > ERETIET
PR RIEPBEEAMRHZEEZER  HE
B —_F-A=+—HIEFEARF
WEBAGRMARERBFEE B ERSE £
MmER B LR EBCHHIIER
T-——_FZA=Zt+—BHEEATK-
CineChina X AR EFBEES W ENIK
BRI EBEE KA
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25. DEPOSIT FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-CONTROLLING

INTERESTS/PAYMENTS TO PARTIES FOR
PROCUREMENT FOR INVESTMENT OF CINEMA
BUSINESS (Continued)

By an internal group reorganisation the capital of Shanghai
Bingo was transferred from a domestic enterprise to a
sino-foreign joint venture enterprise to comply with the
relevant regulatory requirement for foreign investors to
operate cinema business in the PRC during the year
ended 31 March 2013. The Group legally owned 75%
equity interests in Shanghai Bingo to operate the cinema
business by mid- February 2013. The results of the
cinema projects, including Linan and Hangzhou cinema
projects, legally owned by Shanghai Bingo are consolidated
into that of the Group after completion of the internal
group reorganisation. Pursuant to the agreement entered
into between the Group and CineChina on 6 December
2012, CineChina in principle agreed to act as a conduit of
payment on behalf of the Group for the development of the
cinema business in the PRC. CineChina has substantially
utilised the funds for the cinema business through their
connection in the PRC.

On 25 February 2020, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement (“Acquisition Agreement”) with
CineChina to acquire the remaining 30% of the equity
interests of Bingo Cinema Investment Company Limited
(“BCIC") and Bingo Cinema Management Company Limited
(“BCMC”) at a cash consideration of HK$721,000, which
is classified as non-current. In the year ended 31 March
2020, immediately before entering into the Acquisition
Agreement, the Group recorded a receivable balance of
approximately RMB1,985,500 from CineChina. The
consideration for the Acquisition Agreement of
HK$721,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB650,000)
was net off against the receivable of RMB1,985,500
from CineChina. The remaining balance of approximately
RMB1,335,500 (equivalent to HK$1,480,000) has been
collected by the Group in April 2020, and exchange gain
of approximately HK$28,000 relating to this receivable
has been recorded in the year ended 31 March 2021.
The management of the Group assessed that no expected
credit loss on the receivable from CineChina
RMB1,985,500 is required to be recognised during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2020/21

25.

KRR ERZERE HikE
TREEBRNEFIMZRE @)

HE - ZT—=FZA=Z+—BIFE &
BASEESEA LR EBZEAERE R
NEPEERE —RFINGERE NE
TFHNBIEE BN REEFEB 2 58
EERT AEBAEERALS EE75%
RE NE_ET—=F A4 ZRKE
LR RN EBEAR ke EEBA
5£%7ﬁ_2?€% TIE B (BIERT inINE

FMIER ) CEBREFTATEEEE R
TFZIKEIE'@CmeChmaEA_i—_i‘I':
A 7N HEIS 2% ' CineChina JR Bl =
T HERERETEYRESRRAEE
S'Zﬁm I8 ;2 F fE A © i 38 CineChina £ # [
BRI HERERESHAKRILS

R-ZZE-_ZEF-_A-+HB A£EH
CineChina 7] 32 T Wig sk ([WEEaE])
LS R E721,000/8 Tl 5B
HEBR AR (BCICH R EERE
BERAR( FBCI\/ICJ ) T8 19 30% A% -
EoBEARS - BHE2E_T _ZTF=H
=t+—HIFE BEITLRERZA A
£ [E $% 18 CineChina HY J& Ug 70 18 45 8 49 A
R#1,985,500t - WEH =R E
721,000 7T (& R 48 AR %650,000
7T) 2 E CineChina W B T A R
1,985,500 c HESE - AEER T =F
FHAKRBEBOEHOARE
1,335,500t (8 & " 1,480,000/%
JC) - i Ut FE UK R SR B B8 A £928,000%
TELRZEREBEZ-_ZT-_—F=A
—t—HUEFEAR - AEBEEENMH
HE-_T-_FTF-A=-+—HILFE &
TR CineChina M EW K IE AR
1,985,500t FEHRE B E1E -
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26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ReRReFEYD
2021 2020
—E-——%F TR EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Cash at banks and in hand RITNFEIBS 15,303 38,146
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rate based on BITHSRENRSHBITERMNERZ FH

daily bank deposit rates. The fair values of the Group's
bank balances and cash at 31 March 2021 and 2020
approximate their corresponding carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2021, deposits and cash placed with
banks in Mainland China amounted to approximately
HK$7,215,000 (2020: HK$9,478,000). Remittance of
funds out of Mainland China is subject to relevant rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the government of Mainland China.

The bank balances carry interest at market rates which
range from 0.001% to 0.3% (2020: 0.001% to 0.3%)
per annum.

For the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, the
Group performed impairment assessment on bank
balances and concluded that the probability of defaults of
the counterparty banks and financial institution are
insignificant and accordingly, no allowance for expected
credit losses is provided.

MERBAB -ANEBR T -_—F R
EEF=ZA=+t—RZRTA ﬁ%&fﬁi
Z R HERERREZREERS

R-F-_—F=ZA=1+—B HFERHE
A IRIT 2 FR LIRS /H7,215,0008
T (ZEZFF:9,478,000% T) - K&
% 0 W B 3t 2R 2 R B P b IR 2B A 2
MRRESINE B AR B R SR PI AT AR R o

RITHEBIZEF0.001% Z20.3% (ZZ =
T4 :0.001%£E0.3%) TS FEETE -

BE_ T FRk-_ZF-_FTF=-A=1—
BIEFE AEEHRITERETRER
BAGHER HFTRTREHEEE
WA E TN K A B FEREEER
AHER R
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27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. EFIIRR
The aging of the Group’s trade payables based on the REERBEEEAPNENRR KRR
invoice date is analysed as follows: ManT
2021 2020
—BE-—F —ETETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
Within 30 days 30B A 187 -
31-60 days 31260H - 307
61-90 days 61290H 4q -
Over 90 days 90H M £ 12 40
203 347
Payment terms with suppliers are generally within 30 HrER 2 TR EAR — A2 A30R AR -
days.
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values AESRERES BitENERROREE
of trade payables are considered to be a reasonable WRAENTESIEES -
approximation of fair value.
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HthfEFIRIAREETHRIA
2021 2020
—E-—F ZEEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Other payables and accruals Efh e A< R IE K R RRIE
(note 1) (K1aE1) 3,877 3,342
notes: K&t -
1. Included in the amount mainly represents an auditor’s 1. SEIXZEZHAH € 4850,000% T

remuneration of approximately HK$850,000 (2020:

HK$800,000).

2.  All of the other payables and accruals are expected to be

settled within one year or are repayable on demand.
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29. CONTRACTS LIABILITIES 29. EVARK

2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FTET FAET
As at 1 April ROUA—H 7,405 7,756
Revenue recognised during the year in FAEREREEANEE
relation to carried-forward contract ol &
liabilities (903) (4,084)
Receipt in advance from customers FAWERE P #R
for the year 893 4,220
Currency realignment [EPTIEEE 599 (477)
As at 31 March R=ZA=+—H 7,994 7,405

Cinema investment and management

The balance was a prepaid amount in the membership
card by the customers. The balance will be recognised as
income when the customers buy the movies tickets, and
the corresponding movie was broadcasted, and snacks by
utilising the prepaid amount in the membership card.

The timing of the transfer of the movies tickets and
snacks are at the discretion of the customers and the
management considers that the contract liabilities would
not have significant financing component.

All the contract liabilities are expected to be settled within
the Group’s normal operating cycle in respect of cinema
investment and management segment and the whole
balances are classified as current.

No revenue was recognised in the current year relates to
performance obligations that were satisfied in prior
periods.

FRRERER

EHRAEPREERNENKE-EEFP
EHEERANCHEBEERX R (HEMN
BEXORKRL) RTRE SRR S

S o

B

EEEYENTRAONBREFETR &
BEER/AMNBELESAREAKE D -

PIBERHBERMNRASERRKRERE
EOBMNERKEBRAES GHRER
DR

REZIWERBEREEXNNEOE (EHE

Rl as -
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For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

30. LEASE LIABILITIES 30. AR
2021 2020
=B —-F —E_FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Lease liabilities payable: ENfHEEE:
Within one year —FR 3,070 3,877
Within a period of more than one year —F EENERMRF
but not more than two years 2,131 3,405
Within a period of more than two years MEANELETEBBARF
but not more than five years 3,765 7,383
Within a period of more than five years AFNUE 335 3,449
9,301 18,114
Less: Amount due for settlement within 12 & : 1218 A R 2 £ &~ &Y
months shown under current liabilities mENBE (3,070) (3,877)
Amount due for settlement after 12 12 A BB HESH
months shown under non-current FRBEME
liabilities 6,231 14,237

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities range from 3% to 5.38% (2020: from
3% to 5.38%).

All lease obligations are denominated in the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities.
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31.

—E—F=ZA=+—HIFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 22 February 2010, the Company entered into the
service agreement with Mr. CHIAU Sing Chi (“Mr. Chiau”)
whereby the Company appointed Mr. Chiau as an executive
director of the Company and Mr. Chiau accepted the
appointment with prescribed duties for an initial term of
five year from 1 June 2010. In consideration of the
performance by Mr. Chiau of his duties for the Company,
the Company shall, as a remuneration package to issue
the convertible bonds to Mr. Chiau with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$45 million and outstanding
amount as at 31 March 2021 was HK$20 million (2020:
HK$30 million). Details are described in Note 36.

The convertible bonds contain two components, liability
and equity components.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company
was given an undertaking by Mr. Chiau which the maturity
date of original convertible bonds, namely Tranche 2, 3, 4
and 5, was extended by one year to 1 June 2022, 1 June
2023, 1 June 2024 and 1 June 2025 respectively.
During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, no
convertible bonds were converted into shares. There is no
change of conversion period of the above Tranch 2, 3, 4
and 5 of the convertible bonds.

The above modification of terms of the convertible bonds
between the Group and holder of convertible bonds was
considered as a substantial modification and therefore the
original convertible bonds were extinguished and the new
convertible bonds were recognised on the date of
modification.

The fair value of the liability component which was
determined by independent professional valuers Sino-
Infinite Appraisal Limited on the date of change, is the
present value of the contractually determined stream of
future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate
ranged from 13.61% to 19.71% and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the same terms, but
without the conversion option. The residual amount is
assigned as the equity component and is included in equity.

31.

AR RS

R-ZE—ZEF_A+ZH AR EHEF
EfEA ([BEE]) T REHaE Bt
KA ZERAEERARAIBITESE M
BEEREREREEIZET VLT H
BE-ZE—ZEF A BRI AHAF -1
BRATXERBALNRBEITEBE ZNRE K
NABEIBERRBALTERETARASRE AR
45,000,000# 7t 2 7] # 1% (& % 1F & %7 Bl
HE MR_ZE_—F=ZA=1+—HOX
8i& 4% A20,000,0008 T (ZE =&
% : 30,000,000 7T ) ° 5 15 &AM
36 °

ABRRESEEMERD  BAELER

oo

HE_Z_ZF=-A=+—HItFEE &
S AR D EEH A R A R IR G
A5m%2 3 4NSHI AN ITER—F
E-E-—"FRNA—B ZE-=Z%7A
— B ZE_NEAA—BEZE_RF
ANA—B-HEZZEZ—FRZZ=ZF
—A=t+—HIEFE WEJRRKESSE
MmARMD FaE2 -3 - ARSH AT A% F
FR AR AN s ) o

AEE AR ESFFHE A ZH AR
BEHFERH ERERT R R REKXIER
Bk - R E AR B R AR 3K - T ¥ ey Al
BBRAESFARER] B R -

BEHS 2 AFE(RBLEEMEMS
BHEAERAREE) REERHY REWH
MBERARRERERERMNEXNF
13.61% £19.71% #r I &I IR & - I LA 8
FERIREABERRSRE HEREH
MR ER - REO R RREE Y WA AR
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HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 31. AIMRRIR % (5

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the remaining
outstanding convertible bonds of Tranche 1 were
redeemed at a redemption amounting to
HK$10,000,000, which is equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the outstanding convertible bonds of Tranche 1.

The movement of the liability component and equity
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set out

below:

HE-_Z--—F=F=1+—HILFE %1
R RSB IR R EFEEENE1H
REHR AR E S A S5 100% K E 0 &
%8 (B110,000,000%E t) F A& [ -

Ey ARBESEEDH RBRBH 2
BRI T

Liability Equity

component component

aERs BRI

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FAET

At 1 April 2019 RZFE—-ILFHA—H 24,618 76,520

Imputed interest charged EAHHENE 4,547 -
Extinguishment upon extension of AR AR 15 25 3 BRRRE 3 68

convertible bonds (19,418) (51,012)
Recognition upon extension of convertible A # i% & 55 & B 5 32

bonds 11,793 40

At 31 March 2020 NZZE-_FEF=-FA=+—H 21,540 25,548

Imputed interest charged EEHEFR A 2,212 -

Redemption of convertible bonds fE O AR (E 5 (10,000) (25,508)

At 31 March 2021 RZFEZ—F=H=+—H 13,752 40

2021 2020

—EB-—& —E-TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTER FET

Mature within 1 year — RN - 9,747

Mature later than 1 year —F1&EH 13,752 11,793

13,752 21,540
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32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. &
As at 31 March 2021 As at 31 March 2020
R-BE--%£=A=1+-H R-ZE-TF=ZF=+—H
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
gt | HfE R EE [EE
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
T TER T FET
Authorised: ERE

At the beginning of the year, ordinary ~ RFH) - SREBO.0TET
shares of HK$0.01 (2020: HK$0.04) (ZZE=Z%:0.04%571)

each VIR R 20,000,000 200,000 5,000,000 200,000
Share consolidation [note 1) BB (ML) - - (3,750,000) -
Share subdivision (note 1) BOYRA (A1) - - 18,750,000 -

At the end of the year, ordinary shares R &K B EEC.01/ET
of HK$0.01 each ok tilie 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000

Issued and fully paid: BETRER:

At the beginning of the year, ordinary ~ REH) - SREEO.0TE T
shares of HK$0.01 (2020: HK$0.04) (ZZ=ZF:0.04%71)

each TR R 855,385 8,554 3,421,539 136,861
Share consolidation [note 1) BB (ML) - - (2,566,154) -
Capital reduction (note 1) BARHIR (Hz1) - - - (128,307)

At the end of the year, ordinary shares P& & B EEC.01/ET

of HK$0.01 each HE R 855,385 8,554 855,385 8,554
nate 1: HiaET -
On 2 May 2019, the Company completed a capital reorganisation RZZE-NFRAZR ARAITHEREMR
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) invalving the share consalidation, (TERER])  FRERHEH BREURERD
the capital reduction and the share subdivision. The Capital FH-EAREHAER T -NF-_A+-BE]T
Reorganisation was approved at the extraordinary general ERRRRAE FEGIE FB0T:
meeting held on 12 February 2018. Details of which are as
follows:
m SHARE CONSOLIDATION )} grR=gtis
The Company implemented a share consolidation on the RAATBRERMEHOER AR T
basis that every four existing shares of HK$0.04 of the —NWFAA B ARFE4KR0.04%
Company combined into one consolidated share of THRBEROHAEMHAE—RO.1I6ETHA
HK$0.16 effective on 2 May 2019; DER 9

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

note 1: (Continued)
(1) CAPITAL REDUCTION

This involves the reduction of the nominal value of each
issued consolidated share from HK$0.16 to HK$0.01
effective on 2 May 2019; and

() SHARE SUBDIVISION

Immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued consolidated share of nominal
value of HK$0.16 each will be subdivided into sixteen new
shares of HK$0.01 each effective on 2 May 2018.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation are stated in the
Company’s circular dated 18 January 2019.

Share award scheme

The Board of the Company approved the adoption of a
share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) with
effect from 14 August 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
purpose of the Share Award Scheme is to (i) recognise
and reward the contributions by certain eligible
participants and to give incentives thereto in order to
retain them for the continual operation and development
of the Group; and (ii) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group. Unless otherwise early
terminated by the resolution of the board, the Share
Award Scheme is valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the Adoption Date.

The Share Award Scheme is operated through a trustee
which is independent of the Group. The shares to be
awarded under the Share Award Scheme will be (i) issued
by way of new issue of shares; and/or (ii) acquired by the
trustee from the open market after the notification and
instruction by the Company. The trustee shall not hold
more than 10% of the total number of issued shares of
the Company.
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& ()
Hrat1 - (58)
n  EXRYRE

H-_Z-NAFRA-_B# SREETAE
BEIR D M EE ARO. 1678 Tm 2 =0.01/%8
Jo K

(n  RoFHA

EWERHIRE R-_E-AFAA-R
R B IREEO. 168 TR AT B R #
TA PO BRI R8I FR0.01E
TTHVFTR ©

* ARFREHAE-ZE-NAF-A+RH
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Share award scheme (Continued)

On 16 August 2019 and 14 October 2019, the Company
granted an aggregate of 12,790,000 awarded shares to
two executive directors, namely Mr. Chiau and Ms. Chow
Man Ki Kelly, and 29,860,000 awarded shares
(collectively referred to as the “Awarded Shares”) to other
employees and advisors of the Group (collectively referred
to as the “Selected Participants”). Subject to the
acceptance of the Selected Participants and that the
Selected Participants remain as employees and advisors
of the Group on the vesting date of the Awarded Shares,
the Awarded Shares shall vest in them on 15 August
2020, 13 October 2020 and 13 October 2021, at which
time the Awarded Shares were transferred to the
Selected Participants at nil consideration.

As additional time is required for the trustee to acquire
the Awarded Shares on market, subject to the terms and
conditions of the Share Award Scheme, the Company and
the relevant Selected Participants mutually agreed that
part of the Awarded Shares, which were originally vested
on the first anniversary of the date of grant, would be
vested to the Selected Participants on the second
anniversary of the date of grant or the date when the
trustee has completed the acquisition of all the Awarded
Shares on market, whichever is earlier.

During the year, the Company did not repurchase any
shares of the Company through the trustee of the Share
Award Scheme from the open market. The Group
recognised a share award expense of HK$1,120,000
(2020: HK$1,720,000) during the year ended 31 March
2021 in respect of the Awarded Shares granted. As at
31 March 2021 and 2020, no shares were held through
the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.

Share options scheme
Details of the Company’'s share option schemes and the

share options granted under the share option schemes
are included in Note 34 to the financial statements.
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Capital management

Capital comprises of share capital and reserves stated on
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
owners of the Company and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher
owners’ returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded
by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions. During the year ended 31 March 2021, the
Group maintains its net asset position.

As at the year ended, interest bearing debt and total cash
balances are approximately HK$13,752,000 (2020:
HK$21,540,000) and HK$15,303,000 (2020:
HK$38,146,000) respectively. As the total cash amounts
are higher than the interest bearing debt amounts, the
net debt-to-equity ratio is not applicable.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirement.
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33. RESERVES 33. W
The Company PN
Equity
component, of Share  Share award
Share  Contributed  convertible options scheme  Accumulated
premium surplus honds reserve reserve losses Total
TRRkES BUELRE |
RiYEE BfBR  ZBENS  ERERE i i ER a3t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T Tt TéEn ThEn
At 1 April 2019 RZZ-NEWA-A 420,810 1,988 76,520 53,022 - (635,837) (83,497)
Extinguishment upon extension® (R (E4 T EF 3
of convertible bonds - - (51,012) - - 58,597 7,585
Recognition upon extension of AR EAIEERED
canvertible bonds - - 40 - - - 40
Lapse of share options~~~ EREXT - - - (42,756) - 42,756 -
Equity settled share award DR £E 2R £B %4
arrangement - - - - 1,720 - 1,720
Capital recuction BRI - 128,307 - - - - 128,307
Loss for the year KEEEE - - - - - (49,411) (49,411)
At 31 March 2020 R-B-RE=A=1-H]
and 1 April 2020 “TCRENA-R 420,810 130,295 25,548 10,266 1,720 (583,895) 4,744
Redemption of comvertible BB &R E5
bonds - - (25,508) - - 25,508 -
lssue of share options L - - - 893 - - 893
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - (3,596) - 3,596 =
Lapse of share awards e - - - - (1,153) 1,153 =
Equity settled share award ~ MERES 2R £BZ
arrangement - - - - 1,120 - 1,120
Loss for the year rEEFE - - - - - (11,716) (11,718)
At 31 March 2021 WZFZ-F=R=1-H 420,810 130,295 40 7,563 1687  (565,354) (4,959)

At 31 March 2021, no reserves is available for
distribution to owners of the Company (2020: Nil).

The share premium is arising from the issue of shares of
the Company.

The contributed surplus represents the difference
between the combined net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the
shares of the Company at the time of the Group
reorganisation.

On 2 May 2019, the Company completed a capital
reduction. The nominal value of each issued share was
reduced from HK$0.16 to HK$0.01. The credit arising
from the capital reduction amounted to
HK$128,307,000 was transferred to the contributed
surplus of the Company.

KRB —F=A=+—HB HEI#HY
ETARREAAZREBE (T T4
&)

Petn i BTy R EIT AR BBy AL -

BB REN AN EBEERR AR E U
ZHMBARAHEEFEEANRAKNE
BEM2Z8E-

RZE-—NFRAZH AARTHBRAE
AR - B2 BT M EEHO0.168 T
HIRLZ=0.0178 7T IR AN HIRLE £ B E IR R
128,307,000 TEHEHE AN QA EH
Bk
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 15 August 2012, a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted for the
primary purpose of providing incentives to directors,
eligible employees and participants who have contributed
to the Group and will expire on 14 August 2022. Under
the Scheme, the Board of the Company may grant options
to certain employees of the Group and any distributor,
contractor, business partner, promaoter, service provider,
customer, supplier, consultants, agents and advisers or
any person who, in the sole discretion of the Board, has
contributed or may contribute to the Group in recognition
of their contribution to the Group.

Under the GEM Listing Rules, the maximum number of
Shares which may be allotted and issued annually upon
the exercise of all options which initially shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
date of adoption of the Scheme and thereafter, if
refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue
(“Scheme Mandate Limit”) as at the date of approval of
the refreshed limit by the Shareholders. Notwithstanding
the foregoing, the number of Shares to be issued upon
the exercise of all the Options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and other share option
schemes must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. Options lapsed in
accordance with the terms of the share option scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in
aggregate within any 12-month period is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue, without
prior approval from the Company's shareholders. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-
executive directors or any of his, her or its associates in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of offer
of the option exceeding the higher of O0.1% of the
Company's shares in issue and with a value in excess of
HK$5 million must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. RERRIERTE ()

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from the date of acceptance
of the share option to such date as determined by the
Board of the Company and the exercise price will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company's shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average

BRHZBRESERRL ASEA21H
N EOBRENIBTRER BR
BUNEMNBEREEEEERARFESS
BT AMBYAREETE BITEES
A EROARBBRMNE L Az KH
B: (I ARF RO ERFEL BB A E
2E A 2 FHWHE K i) A2 BB

closing price of the Company’s shares for the five business AE=FFRZ2&aE-
days immediately preceding the date of grant and (iii) the

nominal value of the Company's shares.

Details of specific categories of options and the fair value FEBEMNBRERBREATEZFEH
of options are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated iR E S ImARMIEE36 o

financial statements.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme FR ZABBETREZBRENREE
and movements in such holdings during the year were as FBEWNT
follow:
Number of shares issuable under options held
BEAGBRETFRITZROHE
Balance at Balance at
1 April 31 March
2020 2021
Share R-Z-EfF R=-Z=-%
Category option type A—H Granted Lapsed =A=+-H
g5 BREER iR 2 BAX iR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000
Tk Tk TR Tk
Directors £ 2015A 5,000 - (5,000) -
2016A 10,500 - (750) 9,750
2017A 8,500 - - 8,500
2018A 7,500 - - 7,500
Employees 3= 2018A 15,000 - (7,500) 7,500
Advisors ] 2015A 1,000 - (1,000) -
2016A 1,500 - - 1,500
2018A 22,500 - (15,000) 7,500
2020A - 25,500 - 25,500
71,500 25,500 (29,250) 67,750

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

34.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2020:

BT ® (e

BE_T_TF-_A=1T—"HLEFE &
qu%‘JIéiTréﬁifT@ZEﬁHx%ﬁﬂT~

Number of shares issuable under options held

REMFRER TRITRDEE

Adjusted
balance

upon Capital
Reorganisation
and balance at

31 March

Balance at 2020

1 April Lapsed before BAREHEKZ

2019 Capital ~ Adjustment /&ABESHT

Share R Z=Z—/LF Reorganisation (note 1) M-ZE_ZF

Category option type mA—A BEREH #A¥® =RB=+—H
=gl BREEE 2R GBS (H1zE1) 2R
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

Fi& Fi& Fi& Fi&

Directors 2 2014A 12,000 (12,000) - -
2015A 20,000 - (15,000) 5,000

2016A 42,000 - (31,500) 10,500

2017A 34,000 - (25,500) 8,500

2018A 30,000 - (22,500) 7,500

Employees (== 2018A 60,000 - (45,000) 15,000
Advisors | 2014A 273,800 (273,800) - -
2015A 4,000 - (3,000) 1,000

2016A 6,000 - (4,500) 1,500

2018A 90,000 - (67,500) 22,500

571,800 (285,800) (214,500) 71,500

note 1: Adjustment for Capital Reorganisation effective from
2 May 2019.

The Company has granted share options and recognised
an expense as share-based payments for the year ended

31 March 2021 with an amount of HK$893,000.

The Company has not granted any share options for the

year ended 31 March 2020.
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35. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these

3 7
w
4

consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into Gp

the following material related party and connected BEZ 5 o
transactions.

(a) Key management personnel remuneration (a) FEEBEAESHM

Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors
as disclosed in Note 13 is as follows:

35. MEALRRERXS

RA MWK EMEY TRE &
AEEBETTIIEABEALR

TREBEABZHH (BREME13M
BEXNTARRES ZFR) W

(b)

2021 2020
—E=-—%F TR FF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FABT
Directors’ fee, salaries, allowances BExHe e RAR

and other benefits HAhig R 855 754
Share-based payments VAR /B0 2 1 3K 570 787
1,425 1,541

Connected transactions (b) BAEXRS
2021 2020
—EB-—F —ETTF
Name of connected parties  Nature of transactions HK$’000 HK$'000
BEALEZE REME FE T TET
Goal Creation Game Limited Interest income from loan to an 149 504

AlmERARAR

associate (Note 21)
M — B EE AR E AT B A
(Kiate1)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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35. RELATED PARTY AND CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

35. REALTRRAERS @)

(Continued)
(c) Outstanding balances with connected parties (c) BEEEATZRFEER
2021 2020
—EB-—F —EETF
Name of connected parties = Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
BEALTER REME FER TET
CineChina Limited Receivable of the Group for payment - 1,452
(note 1) (K1:£1) for procurement for investment
of Cinema Business
REBRIKRE L EBZ R
JE W 2 FRIE
Deposit for acquisition of non- - 721

controlling interests

WHEIF RIS 2 &

note 71: CineChina Limited holds 30% equity interest in

subsidiaries of the Company and it is considered a

connected party under the GEM Listing Rules. The

details of the connected transaction is listed in
Note 25.

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Company has the convertible bonds and share option
scheme for directors, employees and advisors of the
Group. Details of the convertible bonds and share options
are as follows:

Kt7£1 : CineChina Limited £ 4 4 2 Al
BB A F30% 2 i - WAk B
GEM EMRAIE T ZREA L

MER S 2 IEHN M 25 -

36. LIBktn HEREZ TR

ARARAREESR EEMBERREHA
WA LB S R R ES LB
Ptz BT

Convertible bonds ARRES
Tranche 2 Tranche 3 Tranche 4 Tranche 5
FoH £3H EAH F55
Principal amount re® HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000 HK$5,000,000
5,000,000%7t 5,000,000#%7 5,000,000%7m 5,000,000%7T
Share price* BRE* HK$0.035 HK$0.035 HK$0.035 HK$0.035
0.035% 7T 0.035% 7T 0.035% 7T 0.035% 7T
Interest FE Zero coupon Zero coupon Zero coupon Zero coupon
Z28 ZE 8 35
Conversion price BiR(E HK$0.544 HK$0.544 HK$0.544 HK$0.544
0.5443% T 0.544% 7T 0.5443% 7T 0.5443% 7T
Maturity date H|H8A Tdune 2022  1dune 2023 1 June 2024 1 June 2025
B —— . “E-MEF “T-RF
~A—H ~A—H ~A—H ~NA—H

* Share price as at 31 March 2020, which is the date of
undertaking by the bondholder given to the Company to extend
the maturity dates of the convertible bonds by one year.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 36.
Share Option Scheme
Details of specific categories of options are as follow:

The fair value of share options which were calculated

LRBRERZ R
AR
HERBIBBREF BT

R -EABREEERAE ZBARE

by binomial option pricing model with the following NEFETEANATERRE:
assumptions:
Option type: BRRER 2016A 2017A 2018A 2020A
Grant date: RHAH: 7-7-2016 332017 17-92018 14-7-2020
—ERE “EtF —E)\E -3Z%
tAtH =A=H NATEA tAtTEA
Number of options granted: RBREHA - 342,000,000 159,000,000 180,000,000 25,500,000
Exercise period: 1688: 7-7-2016- 3-3-2017- 17-9-2018- 14-7-2020~
6-7-2021 2-3-2022 16-9-2023 13-7-2025
It At “TtF it 2it:2 it Sk 223
tAtAZE -—A=A% ARTtRE tRATHmEZE
—E--F “E-F k- St 2 —Z-nE
thAAR —RZH ART7RA tA+=H
Exercise price: TRE: HK$0.180/% T HK$0.135/ T HK$0.04275 T HK$0.07475 T
Adjusted exercise price: FEEARE: HK$0.7207 1T HK$0.54073 HK$0.16875 T N/A
(note) (#rit) TR
Fair value: ATE: HK$26,600,000 HK$8,640,000 HK$2,181,000 HK$893,000
BT BT BT BT
Option type: ERREER 2020A
Share price as at grant date: P A B2 R (B - HK$0.0687% 7t
Nature of the options: BRE S : Call 728
Risk-free rate: R b = 0.141%
Expected life of the options: RERHE  TEHAFHA 5 years &
Expected volatility: SEEEN AR 72.9%
Expected dividend yield: TR EAAR B e K 0%
Exercise multiple: TS 2.80

The expected volatility was based on the historical volatility
of the Company’'s share prices. Expected dividends were
based on historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

note: The exercise price was adjusted due to the share
consolidation on 2 May 20189.

T8 R 0E D AR R R A (B 18 2 3B 1 K &)
REE-FHREUBERESEE - TH
WABBRRWEES A Y G RF
EBRNERTE-

Hiat: @D EeEs TRECR-F-NF
FR-BH#HE-
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. EEMBLTFZHE
Particulars regarding the subsidiaries at 31 March 2021 RZEZ_—F=ZA=+—H WBRAZ
are as follows: FEM

Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital ~ held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Rl aye legal entity BETR  ADREMGEZREER  activities
WEAREE BEMY EEBRER BRERA Directly  Indirectly FEB%%
EE &
% %
Art Aim Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 - 100 Movie
HEBR AT B company 1T production
BREERT EYRME

Billion Success Corporation Hong Kong Limited liability HKS$ - 100  Licensing
Limited BE company Vi business

ERBERLA BREERT SEHEXT

Bingo Cinema Investment Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100  Cinema
Company Limited Bk company 10,000/ 1T (2020: 70)  investment

HREYRERERRAT BREERT (Z2-2%2%: PRRE

70)

Bingo Cinema Management Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100 Cinema
Company Limited B company 10,000% 1T (2020: 70)  management
HEEYREERRA BREARA (Z22%F: ghen

70)

Bingo Management Services Hong Kong Limited liability HKS 100 - Management
Limited Bk company T services

HRERRKERAT BREARA EERK

Bingo Movie Development Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Movie
Limited B company AT production
HEEYERARAA BREARTA BRAE

Brillant Tech Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HKS - 100  Cinema

FRERAA B company 1T (2020: 70)  management

BREARA (Z2-Z2%F: ghEn
70)

Easybuild Assets Management ~ BVI Limited liability Us$1 100 - Investment
Limited SRRAES company 1% holding

SRAEEEARAA BREERT REER

m ANNUAL REPORT £
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. EEMBLTZFEE @)

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital ~ held by the Company  Principal
Name of subsidiaries Raui e legal entity BETR  ADAEMGEZREESR  activities
WEARAR BEHY EERERER BRRA Directly  Indirectly FE£%
E# &
% %
Emcom (HK) Pte Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10 100 - Investment
BEEA (BB FRAF 0 company 108 holding
BREERT REER
Huge Art Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$1 100 - Cartoon
REERAA B company VAT production
BREARA REE
Lofty Gain Investments Limited BV Limited liability Us$1 100 - Movie
HRREERAA RERNESE company (E production
BREERT BEYRME
Lofty Shine Limited BVI Limited liability US$1 100 - Investment
REARAR RERAES company 127 holding
BREARHA REER
Shanghai Caike Cinema PRC Limited liability US$100,000 - 100  Cinema
Management and F company 100,000% 7t (2020: 70)  management
Consultancy Limited. * (e BREEAF (Z2-2%F: ZhER
LTEXHTRERES 70)
BIR AR W
Huichi (Shanghai) Consuftancy ~ PRC Limited liability US$500,000 - 100  Cinema
Limited* (rete?) ¢' company 500,000% 1t (2020: 70)  investment
B (LB RELS AREMRH (Z22%2F: ghkE
BR A7 WY 70)
Shanghai Huichi Management PRC Limited liability RMB100,000 - 100 Cinema
and Consultancy Co., Ltd. * H company ANEE (2020: 70)  investment
LEEMEREAFRAT BREERT 100,0007t (Z22%F: PhkE
70)
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) PRC Limited liability ~ RIMBB6,000,000 - 75  Cinema business
Company Limited* H company AR® (2020: 52.5) ¥HREE
heEFk (LE)BRAR AREERH 6,000,0007 (Z2=%fF:
52.5)

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

37. FEMBLATIZHE @

(Continued)
Place of Issued and Attributable
incorporation/ fully paid equity interests
operation Type of share capital ~ held by the Company ~ Principal
Name of subsidiaries Rauiaye legal entity BETR  ADFAEMGEZREESR  activities
EPNEE EEME EEERER BERRA Directly  Indirectly FE£%
B &
% %
Hangzhou Linan Bingo Cinema ~ PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75  Cinema business
Company Limited* HE company AR® (2020: 52.5) ¥hREE
mMBZLREXRERAT BREAERH 500,0007¢ (Z2-%%:
52.5)
Hangzhou Bingo Cinema PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 75  Cinema business
Company Limited* HE company N (2020: 52.5) ¥hREH
MMt REZRBRAF BREARA 500,0007t (ZB-%%:
52.5)
Beijing Bingo Sky Culture PRC Limited liability RMB - 100  Investment holding
Limited * ot 1) HE company 2,000,000 (2020: ni) &HEZK
ERERZEN L BREARTA AR® (ZB-%%:
BR Q7 WY 2,000,0007c &)
Zhejiang Bingo Family Brand PRC Limited liability ~ RMB10,000,000 - 51  Trading
Management Company H company N (2020: nl) &5
Limited* BREARA 10,000,0007 (ZBZ%%:
IR RMEEEERD E)
* English name for identification purpose only * XA TEE R
note: K5t -
1. Wholly owned foreign enterprises (WOFE) registered under 1. BREBEHEEEZELRZINEEERE -
PRC law.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2020/21



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Group that has material non-controlling
interests:

37. FEMBLATZHE @

TRINNEBEERFER S 2 NEEE
2EMBRRZHE:

Place of Proportion of ownership

incorporation and
principal place

interests and voting
rights held by

of business non-controlling interests ~ (Loss)/Profit allocated to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary EMALEER  FEREZEEZEERER  noncontrolling interests  non-controlling interests
WEARER TEEXBY REERELA FERERERL (FR) /57 Rt EERES
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
SE--F -Z-%F ZB--f C"Z-%F BT -Z-%%
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tan Fign TEx ThEL
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) HEEFR (LE) PRC 25% 47.5% 2,173) (12,763) (515) 2,653
Company Limited BRAE
Individually immaterial subsidiaries 7/ 3£ Rk % 2 i (63) (6,590]
with non-controlling interests (ERIEENGIEVNG
(578) (3,937)

Commitments in respect of subsidiaries

The Group has the following commitments relating to its
subsidiaries:

BEKNE QT ZEE

AEBEUATERENMBARBE I ARE:

2021 2020

—E-—F ZEEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Commitment to provide funding if called B EREHRES 6,011 —

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
EEEEERERAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is
set out below. The summarised financial information below
represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

37.

FEMBATZHEE &)

TR EARBEAFERERZ AL
BEBARcMBENBE  TMEE
M 2EEBAKE ARIRYHEN 28 -

2021 2020
—F=-—-F —E-TF
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company bkmEFk (E8) HK$’'000 HK$'000
Limited AR AR THET FET
Non-current assets EmENEE 1,482 16,385
Current assets TENE B 13,985 15,606
Current liabilities VEAR=NE (11,602) (12,671)
Non-current liability EmeaE (5,925) (13,739)
Revenue U =5 6,815 22,616
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-FF
Bingo Cinema (Shanghai) Company ke ERE (E8) HK$'000 HK$'000
Limited AR AR THET FHT
Loss for the year attributable to I TREEARFEER
- owners of the Company — KRBHEEA (5,927) (1,418)
- non-controlling interest — FEEARIE RS (2,173) (1.282)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income, UTEG2E (B8) RA
attributable to: MmE:
- owners of the Company — RABIEA A (5,619) 2,147
- non-controlling interest — iR (2,026) 1,941
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBPAZIRE F5E (656) (10,139)
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFAZR T (5.072) (2,087)
Net cash used in financing activities METHACREFHE (1,833) (4,238)
Change in ownership interest in subsidiaries RN BATIZEEEEREH

During the year, the Group acquired the remaining 30% of
its interests in BCIC and BCMC. The consideration of
acquisition of HK$721,000 were paid in cash during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021. An
amount of HK$5,495,000 (being the proportionate share
of the carrying amount of the net liabilities of BCIC and
BCMC) has been transferred from non-controlling
interests. The difference of HK$6,222,000 between the
decrease in deficit of the non-controlling interests and the
consideration paid has been debited to accumulated

losses.

ANNUAL REPORT ik
2020/21

F A A5 B e B8 7 BCIC X BCMC # Fl £
%N EH - HE-_ZT - TF=_A=1+—H
- —F=ZA=+—HIEFEEUR
eAAEZHKENRET721,000% T °
5,495,000/% JT ( 817 b 1 9 15 BCIC &
BCMC FBEMEREE) v B8 a3
TR RS o IR RS B AR L EHE AR
B2 Mr=%6,222,0008 T it AR
B8



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MERRME

For the Year ended 31 March 2021
HE LT —F=A=1—HIFEF

38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

38. FATFMBRARE

COMPANY

2021 2020
—EB-—& —E-TF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSET kREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN $ 159,504 162,587
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Other receivables, deposits and Hith e I8 - i e &
prepayments TERTFRIE 5,123 5,155
Cash and cash equivalents ReENKBFELFEY 1,310 15,668
6,433 20,823
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Other payables and accruals H fth JE AT R IE K JE 5T 3R IE 1,289 1,180
Amounts due to subsidiaries ANPGRS 147,301 147,392
Convertible bonds A AR & 25 - 9,747
148,590 158,319
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAETFE (142,157) (137,496)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEHABERABAE
LIABILITIES 17,347 25,091
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Convertible bonds Al E S 13,752 11,793
NET ASSETS EEFE 3,595 13,298
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EARAR R E
Share capital % AR 8,554 8,554
Reserves % (4,959) 4,744
TOTAL EQUITY REHHER 3,595 13,298
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved RRARNBMBERABRER _ZE_—F R

and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29

A-tThBEEESSHERKETE I

June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHOW Man Ki Kelly
AR
DIRECTOR
BE

HTNIEEREREE:

CHOW Nga Chee Alice
A A
DIRECTOR
EF

BINGO GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED m
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFMBGRE

The results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

AEERBEREVBRFREZXENEERRA

five financial years are as follows: (ECUNNE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-—& —T-FTF ZT-NF ZT-NF ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERx FET FiET FET FET
RESULTS *i&
Revenue Uz 6,860 22,888 38,048 47,877 45,230
Loss before taxation B BB 1B (24,894) (54,711) (25,624) (10,542) (58,615)
Taxation TR (16) (131) (918) (846) (1,001)
Loss before non-controlling  #0BR FE12 A% 4 45 A1
interests &8 (24,910) (54,842) (26,542) (11,388) (59,616)
Non-controlling interests FEPERR 3,422 13,367 132 846 (523)
Loss attributable to owners AR R #E AEG
of the Company BB (21,488) (41,475) (26,410) (10,542) (60,139)
Loss per share BiEB
— Basic and diluted — EARREE (B
(HK cents) (note) (H3) (2.51) (4.85) (3.09) (1.23) (7.03)
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E-_—& —T-TF ZT-NFE ZE-N\F ZT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET FET FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE
Total assets EERE 43,948 82,342 115,251 145,884 196,781
Total liabilities BERHE (35,127) (50,748) (37,316) (41,056) (84,533)
Non-controlling interests FEER S (578) (3.937) 9,856 11,230 12,195
note: Adjusted for share consolidation effective from 2 May 2019 Kist: BROEHABRE_ZE-—NFRERAZHEX
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